
City Council Regular

College Station, TX

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840

City Hall Council Chambers7:00 PMThursday, August 11, 2016

1.  Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence request.

Hear Visitors: A citizen may address the City Council on any item which does not 

appear on the posted Agenda. Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the 

desk of the City Secretary. This form should be completed and delivered to the City 

Secretary by 5:30 pm. Please limit remarks to three minutes. A timer alarm will sound 

after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining to conclude your remarks. The 

City Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 

issue on a future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City 

Manager. Comments should not personally attack other speakers, Council or staff.

Consent Agenda

At the discretion of the Mayor, individuals may be allowed to speak on a Consent 

Agenda Item. Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent agenda 

item not posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the 

Mayor's reading of the agenda item. Registration forms are available in the lobby and 

at the desk of the City Secretary.

2.  Presentation, possible action and discussion of consent agenda items which 

consists of ministerial or "housekeeping" items required by law. Items may be removed 

from the consent agenda by majority vote of the Council.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion of minutes for:

· July 28, 2016 Workshop

· July 28, 2016 Regular Meeting

16-04802a.

Sponsors: Mashburn

WKSHP072816 DRAFT Minutes

RM072816 DRAFT Minutes

Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approving a 

contract for the grant of federal HOME Community Housing 

Development Organization (CHDO) Set-Aside funds with Elder-Aid, 

Inc. in the amount of $200,000 for acquisition and rehabilitation of 

two (2) existing dwelling units to be used as affordable rental 

housing for income-eligible elderly households.

16-04002b.

Sponsors: Eller

Page 1 College Station, TX Printed on 8/4/2016



August 11, 2016City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - Final

Contract and Grant for HOME Programs- Elder-Aid Inc.Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional 

Services Contract (Contract No. 16300415) with Binkley and 

Barfield, Inc., in the amount of $571,102.50, for engineering and 

surveying services associated with the FM 2818 Capacity 

Improvements Design Project.

16-04132c.

Sponsors: Harmon

Project Location Map 8.5x11 - FM2818 Capacity ImprovementsAttachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional 

Services Contract (Contract No. 16300529) with Jones & Carter, 

Inc. for $152,500 for the final design and construction phase 

services for the Lick Creek Generator Replacement Project.

16-04192d.

Sponsors: Harmon

Lick Creek Location MapAttachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 

construction contract 16300432 with JaCody Construction, LP LLC, 

in the amount of $3,366,146 for renovations to the existing facility 

and construction of a new multi-purpose building for the Lincoln 

Recreation Center.

16-04202e.

Sponsors: Harmon

ITB 16-075 tabulation - 16-075 Tabulation

Project location map

Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of 

a Professional Services Contract (Contract No. 16300553) with 

Binkley & Barfield in the amount of $650,326 for the professional 

engineering services related to the design of the Rock Prairie Road 

West Widening Project (ST1604).

16-04212f.

Sponsors: Harmon

Project MapAttachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the award 

of Bid 16-087 to Techline, Inc. in the amount of $51,600 for the 

purchase of distribution line sensors.

16-04352g.

Sponsors: Crabb

Bid Tab for 16-087Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the 

rejection bids 16-006 and 16-059 for the University Drive 

Underground Cable Installation Project.

16-04362h.

Page 2 College Station, TX Printed on 8/4/2016



August 11, 2016City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - Final

Sponsors: Crabb

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of 

a Resolution setting a public hearing date of September 22, 2016 

at 7:00 p.m., to consider the imposition of water and wastewater 

impact fees.

16-04452i.

Sponsors: Gibbs

15B RES hearing w-ww IFAttachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the annual 

copy and print services blanket order second renewal with 

Alphagraphics (formerly Tops Printing) for $80,000; Copy Corner 

for $40,000; and Office Depot (available through the National 

Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Cooperative (NIPA)) for 

$20,000. The total not to exceed amount is $140,000 for copy and 

print services

16-04492j.

Sponsors: Leonard

Bid 14-072 Signed Copy and Print - AlphaGraphics

Bid 14-072 Signed Copy and Print - Copy Corner

Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on Renewal 1 of the 

award for the annual purchase of electric distribution poles, which 

will be maintained in electrical inventory and expended as needed. 

The total recommended award is $525,996 to Techline, Inc. This 

includes a vendor requested overall price increase of 4.35%.

16-04502k.

Sponsors: Leonard

Bid 15-062 Signed Electric Distribution PolesAttachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the bid 

award of annual transformer repair and rebuild services to 

Greenville Transformer Company, Inc. in the amount of 

$64,515.85.

16-04552l.

Sponsors: Crabb

Bid Tab 16-089Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on calling a public 

hearing on the City of College Station FY 2016-2017 Proposed 

Budget for Thursday September 8, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the City Hall 

Council Chambers.

16-04602m.

Sponsors: Kersten

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of 

a construction contract 16300497 with Hahn Equipment Company 

in the amount of $149,049 for the replacement of the Lick Creek 

16-04722n.

Page 3 College Station, TX Printed on 8/4/2016



August 11, 2016City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - Final

Raw Lift Pumps and Variable Frequency Drives.

Sponsors: Coleman

ITB 16-085 tabulation - ITB 16-085 TabulationAttachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 

the funding agreement between the City of College Station and the 

Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) for FY16. 

The amendment will allow for reimbursement costs in the amount 

of $30,000 related to the acquisition of a site for a visitor 

information center according to Tax Code Section 351.101(a) (1). 

The original agreement allowed for reimbursement of legal and 

architect fees associated with a new joint facility with the Arts 

Council of the Brazos Valley (also in the amount of $30,000).

16-04752o.

Sponsors: Kersten

CVB 2016 Amend #1-Shannon signedAttachments:

Regular Agenda

At the discretion of the Mayor, individuals may be allowed to speak on a Regular 

Agenda Item. Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda 

item not posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the 

Mayor's reading of the agenda item. Registration forms are available in the lobby and 

at the desk of the City Secretary.

Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 

shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor's announcement to open the 

public hearing.· The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 

speak for or against the item. The speaker will state their name and address for the 

record and allowed three minutes. A timer alarm will sound at 2 1/2 minutes to signal 

thirty seconds remaining to conclude remarks. After a public hearing is closed, there 

shall be no additional public comments. If Council needs additional information from 

the general public, some limited comments may be allowed at the discretion of the 

Mayor.

If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be 

recorded in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the 

individual may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the 

name, address, and comments about a city related subject. These comments will be 

referred to the City Council and City Manager.

Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 

regarding an ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan - 

Future Land Use & Character Map from Estate and Suburban 

Commercial to Restricted Suburban for approximately 16 acres 

16-04771.

Page 4 College Station, TX Printed on 8/4/2016



August 11, 2016City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - Final

located 8607 Rock Prairie Road, generally located north of Rock 

Prairie Road and west of William D. Fitch Parkway.

Sponsors: Paz

Background Information

Aerial

Amendment Map

0 comp plan 8607 RPR 3 FINAL

Attachments:

Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 

approving an ordinance vacating and abandoning a 0.149-acre 

portion of the right-of-way located at 600 First Street, being part of 

the W.C. Boyett Estate Partition Map recorded in Volume 100, 

Page 440 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas.

16-04782.

Sponsors: Cotter

Vicinity Map

Location Map

Ordinance

Exhibit A

Attachments:

Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 

regarding an ordinance amending Chapter 12, “Unified 

Development Ordinance”, Article 3 “Development Review 

Procedures”, Section 12-3.4.C "Application Requirements" and 

Article 7 “General Development Standards”, Section 12-7.13 

“Traffic Impact Analysis”, regarding Traffic Impact Analyses for 

single-family development.

16-04793.

Sponsors: Singh

Redlined Applicable UDO Sections

Ordinance 12-7.13 4

Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

amending Chapter 10 "Traffic Code" of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of College Station, Texas by addition Section 10-14 "Use 

of Wireless Communication Devices While Operating a Motor 

Vehicle or Bicycle" and providing a severability clause; declaring a 

penalty; and providing an effective date.

16-04674.

Sponsors: McCollum

Section 10-14 WCD Ord 7-28-16Attachments:

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 

appointments to the following boards and commissions:

•                     Design Review Board

16-04815.

Page 5 College Station, TX Printed on 8/4/2016



August 11, 2016City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - Final

• Historic Preservation Committee

• Parks and Recreation Board

Sponsors: Mashburn

6. Adjourn.

The City Council may adjourn into Executive Session to consider any item listed on this 

agenda if a matter is raised that is appropriate for Executive Session discussion. An 

announcement will be made of the basis for the Executive Session discussion.

APPROVED

_____________________

City Manager

I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted at College Station City Hall, 1101 

Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas, on August 5, 2016 at 5:00 p.m.

_____________________

City Secretary

This building is wheelchair accessible. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this 

meeting and who may need accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services such as 

interpreters, readers, or large print are asked to contact the City Secretary ’s Office at 

(979) 764-3541, TDD at 1-800-735-2989, or email adaassistance@cstx.gov at least 

two business days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made . 

If the City does not receive notification at least two business days prior to the meeting, 

the City will make a reasonable attempt to provide the necessary accommodations.

Penal Code § 30.07. Trespass by License Holder with an Openly Carried 

Handgun.

"Pursuant to Section 30.07, Penal Code (Trespass by License Holder with an 

Openly Carried Handgun) A Person Licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, 

Government Code (Handgun Licensing Law), may not enter this Property with a 

Handgun that is Carried Openly."

Codigo Penal § 30.07. Traspasar Portando Armas de Mano al Aire Libre con 

Licencia.

“Conforme a la Seccion 30.07 del codigo penal (traspasar portando armas de 

mano al aire libre con licencia), personas con licencia bajo del Sub-Capitulo H, 

Capitulo 411, Codigo de Gobierno (Ley de licencias de arma de mano), no deben 

entrar a esta propiedad portando arma de mano al aire libre.”

Page 6 College Station, TX Printed on 8/4/2016



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0480 Name: Minutes

Status:Type: Minutes Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/29/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion of minutes for:
· July 28, 2016 Workshop
· July 28, 2016 Regular Meeting

Sponsors: Sherry Mashburn

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: WKSHP072816 DRAFT Minutes

RM072816 DRAFT Minutes

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion of minutes for:
• July 28, 2016 Workshop
• July 28, 2016 Regular Meeting

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Good Governance

Recommendation(s):  Approval

Summary: None

Budget & Financial Summary: None

Attachments:
• July 28, 2016 Workshop
• July 28, 2016 Regular Meeting

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4605882&GUID=7D25223A-4DC5-4EE3-A64A-EC9DC7FCB22C
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4605883&GUID=339D5F2E-614D-42CF-92E1-44C8556C86FD


WKSHP072816 Minutes Page 1 

 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

JULY 28, 2016 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS § 

 

Present: 

 

Nancy Berry, Mayor 

 

Council:       TAMU Student Liaison 

 

Blanche Brick      Wayne Beckermann, VP/Municipal Affairs, 

Steve Aldrich      Absent       

Karl Mooney, absent 

John Nichols 

Julie Schultz 

James Benham, via videoconference 

 

City Staff:       
 

Kelly Templin, City Manager                     

Chuck Gilman, Deputy City Manager 

Carla Robinson, City Attorney 

Sherry Mashburn, City Secretary 

Tanya McNutt, Deputy City Secretary 

 

1.  Call to Order and Announce a Quorum is Present 
 

With a quorum present, the Workshop of the College Station City Council was called to order by 

Mayor Berry at 4:31 p.m. on Thursday, July 28, 2016 in the Council Chambers of the City of 

College Station City Hall, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77840. 

 

2. Executive Session  

 

In accordance with the Texas Government Code §551.071-Consultation with Attorney, the College 

Station City Council convened into Executive Session at 4:33 p.m. on Thursday, July 28, 2016 in 

order to continue discussing matters pertaining to: 

 

A. Consultation with Attorney to seek advice regarding pending or contemplated litigation; to wit: 

 Juliao v. City of College Station, Cause No. 14-002168-CV-272, in the 272nd District Court 

of Brazos County, Texas 

http://muniagenda/AgendaViewer/Bluesheet.aspx?itemid=56&meetingid=1


WKSHP072816 Minutes Page 2 

 

 Kathryn A. Stever-Harper as Executrix for the Estate of John Wesley Harper v. City of 

College Station and Judy Meeks; No. 15,977-PC in the County Court No. 1, Brazos 

County, Texas 

 

B. Consultation with Attorney to seek legal advice; to wit: 

 Legal issues related to the replacement of iPerl water meters. 

 

The Executive Session adjourned at 4:55 p.m. 

 

3.  Take action, if any, on Executive Session. 

 

The following action was required from Executive Session: 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Nichols and a second by Mayor Berry,, the 

City Council voted six (6) for and one (0) opposed, to delegate authority to the City Manager to 

negotiate and execute on behalf of the City a certain settlement agreement between the City and 

Sensus USA, Inc. related to the replacement, at no cost to the City, of certain water meters 

previously purchased by the City. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

4. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items listed on the consent agenda. 

 

Items 2d, 2h, and 2l were pulled from Consent for clarification. 

 

(2d) and (2h):  Troy Rother, Traffic Engineer, explained this came about due to complaints 

from the schools about the traffic congestion.  Left turns have been prohibited from the school 

driveways.  Parking is still allowed along Boswell so that parents can park and walk their child 

into the school. 

 

(2l):  Alan Gibbs, Engineer, stated that staff wants to push the Public Hearing date back to allow 

more time to prepare.   

 

5. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on membership qualifications for various 

boards and commissions. 

 

Sherry Mashburn, City Secretary, noted that the majority of the City's boards and commissions 

only require that an appointee be a resident of College Station and be a registered voter in College 

Station. However, there are three boards that have additional specific criteria, which may make it 

difficult to fill those particular positions. The purpose of the presentation is to review the member 

qualifications for the Bicycle, Pedestrian and Greenways Advisory Board, the Design Review 

Board, and the Landmark Commission in order to determine if the establishing ordinances can, or 

should, be amended to open up the candidate pool. 

 

Molly Hitchcock and Venessa Garza, Planning and Development, provided the background on the 

make-up of the committees.  Council directed staff to leave the Bicycle, Pedestrian and Greenways 

Advisory Board as is, and to bring back to Council a draft ordinance amending the establishing 

ordinance governing the Design Review Board, incorporating Council recommendation to 



WKSHP072816 Minutes Page 3 

 

simplify the make-up.  Council recommended that the Landmark Commission become dormant 

until such time that a request for Historic Overlay is brought to the City. 

 

6. Council Calendar 

  

Council reviewed the calendar. 

 

7. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future agenda items: a Councilmember 

may inquire about a subject for which notice has not been given. A statement of specific 

factual information or the recitation of existing policy may be given. Any deliberation shall 

be limited to a proposal to place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 

 

There were no future items. 

 

8. Discussion, review and possible action regarding the following meetings:  Animal Shelter 

Board, Annexation Task Force, Arts Council of Brazos Valley, Arts Council Sub-committee, 

Audit Committee, Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Greenways Advisory Board, Bio-Corridor Board 

of Adjustments, Blinn College Brazos Valley Advisory Committee, Brazos County Health 

Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, Bryan/College Station Chamber of 

Commerce, Budget and Finance Committee, BVSWMA, BVWACS, Compensation and 

Benefits Committee, Convention & Visitors Bureau, Design Review Board, Economic 

Development Committee, Gigabit Broadband Initiative, Historic Preservation Committee, 

Interfaith Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee, Joint Relief Funding Review 

Committee, Landmark Commission, Library Board, Metropolitan Planning Organization, 

Parks and Recreation Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Research Valley 

Partnership, Research Valley Technology Council, Regional Transportation Committee for 

Council of Governments, Sister Cities Association, Transportation and Mobility Committee, 

TAMU Student Senate, Texas Municipal League, Twin City Endowment, YMCA, Youth 

Advisory Council, Zoning Board of Adjustments, 

 

Councilmember Brick reported on the Community Impact Luncheon and the Volunteer 

Appreciation Dinner. 

 

Councilmember Nichols reported on the CVB. 

 

Councilmember Aldrich reported on the RVP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



WKSHP072816 Minutes Page 4 

 

9.  Adjournment 

 

There being no further business, Mayor Berry adjourned the workshop of the College Station City 

Council at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, July 28, 2016.   

 

 

        ________________________ 

        Nancy Berry, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________  

Sherry Mashburn, City Secretary 

 



RM072816 Minutes Page 1 
 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

JULY 28, 2016 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS § 

 

Present: 

 

Nancy Berry, Mayor 

 

Council:      TAMU Student Liaison 

 

Blanche Brick      Wayne Beckermann, VP/Municipal Affairs, 

Steve Aldrich      Absent 

Karl Mooney, absent 

John Nichols 

Julie Schultz 

James Benham, via videoconference  

 

City Staff:          
 

Kelly Templin, City Manager        

Carla Robinson, City Attorney       

Chuck Gilman, Deputy City Manager 

Sherry Mashburn, City Secretary 

Tanya McNutt, Deputy City Secretary 

 

Call to Order and Announce a Quorum is Present 

 

With a quorum present, the Regular Meeting of the College Station City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Berry at 7 09 p.m. on Thursday, July 28, 2016 in the Council Chambers of the 

City of College Station City Hall, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77840. 

 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, consider absence request. 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Aldrich and a second by Mayor Berry, the 

City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to approve Councilmember Mooney’s 

absence request. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Recognition of the top 10 Business Performance Awards in Brazos County. 

 
Mayor Berry recognized the 2016 Top Ten Fastest Growing Small Businesses in Brazos County:  

Pitman Custom Homes; J4 Engineering; The Barracks Construction Group; Kellen Construction 

Interiors; Magruder Homes; FrogSlayer; Computers, Electronics, Office Etc.; Tracy Stewart, CPA; 



RM072816 Minutes Page 2 
 

 

 

America’s Choice Roofing; and Capital Construction Services.  Two other special awards were 

recognized: Texas Commercial Waste, recipient of the Anco Insurance Award for Lifetime 

Business Achievement; and Dr. James Monroe, recipient of the Research Valley 

Commercialization Rising Star Award.  

 

Hear Visitors Comments 

 

Ben Roper, 5449 Prairie Dawn Ct., came before Council to honor the service and sacrifice of Pfc. 

Rick A. Morris Jr. 

 

Safia Naqi, 1706 Leona, came before Council to urge the Mayor and Council to authorize repair 

and ongoing maintenance of the alley serving dozens of owners and tenants. 

 

Dorothy Kurtzmal, 1610 Leona, came before Council to reiterate Ms. Naqi comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

2a. Presentation, possible action, and discussion of minutes for: 

 July 14, 2016 Workshop 

 July 14, 2016 Regular Meeting  

 

2b. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Resolution 07-28-16-2b, 

approving the proposed FY 2017 Community Development Budget and proposed PY 2016 

Annual Action Plan to be submitted to the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development as per the requirement of the Community Development Block Grant and 

HOME Investment Partnership Program grant. 

 

2c. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a bid award for the purchase of electrical 

substation equipment to Wesco Distribution for $94,260 and Hitachi HVB for $64,940 for a 

total award amount of $159,200. 

 

2d. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on Ordinance 2016-3786, amending Chapter 

10, “Traffic Code”, Section 2 “Traffic Control Devices”, J “One-Way Streets and 

Alleyways”, (1) “Traffic Schedule VII - One-Way Streets and Alleyways”, of the Code of 

Ordinances of The City of College Station, Texas, by making Boswell Street a One-Way 

Street all the time. 

 

2e. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional Services Contract 

(Contract No. 16300514) with Freese and Nichols, in the amount of $1,379,449 for the design 

and construction phase services for the Lick Creek Parallel Trunk Line Project, Phases I & 

II; and approval of Resolution 07-28-16-2e, declaring intention to reimburse certain 

expenditures with proceeds from debt. 

 

2f. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the bid award for an annual blanket order 

for the purchase of Type D Hot Mix Asphalt to be picked up by City Crews for the 



RM072816 Minutes Page 3 
 

 

 

maintenance of streets to Knife River for $1,397,500 and Brazos Paving, Inc. for $427,000. 

The total annual not to exceed expenditure is $1,824,500. 

 

2g. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding construction contract (Contract 

No. 16300487) with Restocon Corporation, in the amount of $326,905 for concrete and 

masonry repairs to the Northgate Parking Garage. 

 

2h. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on Ordinance 2016-3789, amending Chapter 

10, “Traffic Code”, Section 4 “Administrative Adjudication of Parking Violations”, E 

“Parking Regulations of Certain Described Areas”, (1) “Traffic Schedule XIV - No Parking 

Here to Corner or No Parking Anytime” to remove stopping, standing, and parking along 

Langford Street and Boswell Street. 

 

2i. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an annual water meter purchase 

contract with National Meter & Automation, Inc. for a maximum annual amount of 

$463,000. 

 

2j. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding construction contract 16300454 

with Smith Pump Company in the amount of $82,291 for the rehabilitation of Transfer Pump 

number three.  

 

2k. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the first renewal of the annual price 

agreement (ITB 15-046) with ProSTAR Industries for the purchase of janitorial supplies not 

to exceed $65,000. 

 

2l. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of Resolution 07-28-16-

2l, setting a public hearing to consider for the imposition of Roadway Impact Fees. 

 

2m. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of Resolution 07-28-16-

2m, setting a public hearing date to consider the imposition of water and wastewater impact 

fees. 

 

2n. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on Ordinance 2016-3789, authorizing a General 

and Special Election to be held on November 8, 2016, for the purpose of electing a Mayor and 

City Councilmember, Place 2, and to fill a vacancy for the two year remainder of the unexpired 

term of office of Councilmember, Place 4, and to fill a vacancy for the one year remainder of the 

unexpired term of office of Councilmember, Place 3, by the qualified voters of the City of College 

Station, establishing early voting locations, polling places for this election and making provisions 

for conducting the election. Presentación, posible acción y discusión sobre una ordenanza 

autorizando Elecciones Generales y Especial para celebrarse el 8 de noviembre de 2016, con el 

propósito de elegir a un Alcalde y a un Miembre del Consejo, Puesto número 2, y para llenar una 

vacante para los dos aňo resto del mandato que quede del mandato de concejal, puesto 4, y para 

llenar una vacante para el un aňo resto del mandato que quede del mandato de concejal, puesto 3, 

por medio de los votantes calificados de la Ciudad de College Station, estableciendo los puestos de 

votaciones tempranas, los centros de votaciones para estas elecciones e indicando las estipulaciones 

para dirigir las elecciones. 

 



RM072816 Minutes Page 4 
 

 

 

Items 2l and 2m were pulled from Consent for a separate vote. 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Nichols and a second by Councilmember 

Schultz, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to approve the Consent Agenda, 

less items 2l and 2m. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

(2l)MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Brick and a second by Councilmember 

Schultz, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to bring this item back before 

Council no later than November 10. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

(2m)MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Brick and a second by Councilmember 

Schultz, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to bring this item back before 

Council no later than September 22. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

1. Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on Ordinance 2016-3790, 

Budget Amendment #2 amending Ordinance No. 3705 which will amend the budget for the 

2015-2016 Fiscal Year in the amount of $628,873 and decrease the net personnel FTE count 

by 5.0; and presentation, possible action and discussion on interdepartmental and 

contingency transfers totaling $378,266. 

 

Jeff Kersten, Assistant City Manager, reported that the proposed budget amendment is to increase 

the FY16 budget appropriations by $628,873. The amendment also includes one interdepartmental 

transfer for $19,960 and one contingency transfer for $358,306 totaling $378,266.  

 

At approximately 7:34 p.m., Mayor Berry opened the Public Hearing. 

 

There being no comments, the Public Hearing was closed at 7:35 p.m. 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Nichols and a second by Councilmember 

Schultz, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to adopt Ordinance 2016-3790, 

Budget Amendment #2 amending Ordinance No. 3705 which will amend the budget for the 2015-

2016 Fiscal Year in the amount of $628,873 and decrease the net personnel FTE count by 5.0; and 

presentation, possible action and discussion on interdepartmental and contingency transfers 

totaling $378,266.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

2. Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Ordinance 2016-

3791, amending Chapter 12, "Unified Development Ordinance," Section 12-4.2, "Official 

Zoning Map," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas by changing 

the zoning district boundaries from R Rural to PDD Planned Development District for 

approximately 6.078 acres of land lying and being situated in the J.H. Jones survey, Abstract 

No. 26, College Station, Brazos County, Texas. Said Tract being a portion of a Called 20.5424 

acre tract of land as described by a deed to Camwest Traditions LP recorded in Volume 

8555, Page 167 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, generally located at 



RM072816 Minutes Page 5 
 

 

 

5068 Raymond Stotzer Parkway, more generally located at the southeast corner of the 

intersection of Highway 47 Frontage Road and HSC Parkway. 

 

Councilmember Schultz recused herself from this item. 

 

Mark Bombeck, Planning and Development, stated that this request is to rezone the subject 

property from Rural to Planned Development District with a base zoning district of Business Park. 

This request is being made as a step toward developing a mixed-use office complex. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item at their July 7 meeting, and voted 

unanimously to recommend approval of the applicant’s request with staff’s recommendation to 

limit the size of the permitted retail sales use to a maximum of 15,000 square feet. 

 

At approximately 7:41 p.m., Mayor Berry opened the Public Hearing. 

 

There being no comments, the Public Hearing was closed at 7:41 p.m. 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Nichols and a second by Councilmember 

Benham, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed, with Councilmember Schultz 

abstaining, to adopt Ordinance 2016-3791, amending Chapter 12, "Unified Development 

Ordinance," Section 12-4.2, "Official Zoning Map," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas by changing the zoning district boundaries from R Rural to PDD Planned 

Development District for approximately 6.078 acres of land lying and being situated in the J.H. 

Jones survey, Abstract No. 26, College Station, Brazos County, Texas. Said Tract being a portion 

of a Called 20.5424 acre tract of land as described by a deed to Camwest Traditions LP recorded 

in Volume 8555, Page 167 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, generally 

located at 5068 Raymond Stotzer Parkway, more generally located at the southeast corner of the 

intersection of Highway 47 Frontage Road and HSC Parkway.  The motion carried. 

 

3. Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Ordinance 2016-

3792, amending Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance” of the Code of Ordinances 

of the City of College Station, Texas, Articles 1 “General Provisions”, 4 “Zoning Districts”, 

5 “District Purpose Statements and Supplemental Standards”, 6 “Use Regulations”, 7 

“General Development Standards”, and 8 “Subdivision Design and Improvements”, related 

to the creation of the WE Wellborn Estate, WRS Wellborn Restricted Suburban, and WC 

Wellborn Commercial zoning districts in compliance with the Wellborn Community Plan. 

 

Jessica Bullock, Planning and Development, reported that the Wellborn Community Plan, adopted 

in 2009, identifies ten Future Land Use and Character designations and calls for the creation of 

zoning districts that align with the objectives of the Plan as one means of implementation. Since 

the adoption of the plan, several zoning districts have been created that can be used city-wide that 

also comply with the vision of the Wellborn Community Plan. Using the land uses adopted as part 

of the Wellborn Community Plan and stakeholder feedback, staff proposes two new residential 

districts (Wellborn Estate and Wellborn Restricted Suburban) and one new commercial district 

(Wellborn Commercial) that will only be permitted in the Wellborn Community Plan Area.  The 



RM072816 Minutes Page 6 
 

 

 

new zoning districts were developed from feedback received from community members along with 

the language provided in the Wellborn Community Plan. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item at their June 16 meeting and voted 6-

0 to recommend approval. 

 

At approximately 7:54 p.m., Mayor Berry opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Robert Cohen, 3655 McCullough Road, provide written comments, attached. 

 

Joe Guerra, 2709 Ravenstone, said the zoning districts are a long time coming, and he is very 

happy for the residents of Wellborn. 

 

There being no further comments, the Public Hearing was closed at 7:55 p.m. 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Brick and a second by Councilmember 

Benham, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to adopt Ordinance 2016-3792, 

amending Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance” of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of College Station, Texas, Articles 1 “General Provisions”, 4 “Zoning Districts”, 5 “District 

Purpose Statements and Supplemental Standards”, 6 “Use Regulations”, 7 “General Development 

Standards”, and 8 “Subdivision Design and Improvements”, related to the creation of the WE 

Wellborn Estate, WRS Wellborn Restricted Suburban, and WC Wellborn Commercial zoning 

districts in compliance with the Wellborn Community Plan.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

4. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Ordinance 2016-3793, amending 

Chapter 2, “Animal Control”, Section 4 “Livestock, Birds, Exotic Animals and Wild 

Animals”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas related to the 

creation of the WE Wellborn Estate zoning district in compliance with the Wellborn 

Community Plan. 

 

Jessica Bullock, Planning and Development, reported that this item amends Chapter 2 of the Code 

of Ordinances to allow the keeping of domestic livestock, fowl, and rabbits without a permit in the 

newly-created Wellborn Estate zoning district. 
 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Benham and a second by Councilmember 

Schultz, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to adopt Ordinance 2016-3793, 

amending Chapter 2, “Animal Control”, Section 4 “Livestock, Birds, Exotic Animals and Wild 

Animals”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas related to the creation 

of the Wellborn Estate zoning district in compliance with the Wellborn Community Plan. The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

5. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding appointments to the following 

boards and commissions: 

 Design Review Board 



RM072816 Minutes Page 7 
 

 

 

 

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Councilmember Brick and a second by Councilmember 

Schultz, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed, to appoint Valerian Miranda to 

the vacant regular position and Jeff Mills to the alternate position. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

6. Adjournment. 

 

There being no further business, Mayor Berry adjourned the Regular Meeting of the City Council 

at 8:01 p.m. on Thursday, July 28, 2016. 

  

 

        ________________________ 

        Nancy Berry, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sherry Mashburn, City Secretary 



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0400 Name: Grant of federal HOME Community Housing
Development Organization (CHDO)

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:6/28/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approving a contract for the grant of federal HOME
Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Set-Aside funds with Elder-Aid, Inc. in the
amount of $200,000 for acquisition and rehabilitation of two (2) existing dwelling units to be used as
affordable rental housing for income-eligible elderly households.

Sponsors: Debbie Eller

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Contract and Grant for HOME Programs- Elder-Aid Inc.

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approving a contract for the grant of federal HOME
Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Set-Aside funds with Elder-Aid, Inc. in the
amount of $200,000 for acquisition and rehabilitation of two (2) existing dwelling units to be used as
affordable rental housing for income-eligible elderly households.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Financially Sustainable City

· Core Services and Infrastructure

· Neighborhood Integrity

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of this Contract

Summary: The federal HOME program provides assistance to income qualified persons by funding a
variety of affordable housing activities.  The City is required by the U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) to make at least 15% of each years HOME grant allocation available for
non-profit agencies that meet the definition of a Community Housing Development Organization
(CHDO).  CHDO’s must have, as one of their goals, the provision of affordable housing.  They must
also have a board make-up that complies with the HOME Program requirements.  The 15% set-aside
funds may be used for most HOME eligible activities.  The HOME grant provides the flexibility to
exceed the 15% requirement if eligible, feasible projects are proposed that address the community
needs.  Affordable senior housing has been identified as a HIGH priority need in the Consolidated
Plan.

Elder-Aid, Inc. has been certified by the City as an eligible CHDO since May 2015 to allow the
organization to expand their mission of serving the elderly into College Station. They have
purchased, rehabilitated and leased 6 duplex units in the City of College Station. They have

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4601269&GUID=63F46B9B-DCFD-4790-9A78-7E8F47DA8F65


File #: 16-0400, Version: 1

demonstrated capacity as a CHDO for the City of Bryan since 1998, where they have received
HOME funds to construct eighteen (18) single-family homes restricted for rental to elderly
households.  Elder-Aid submitted a proposal to acquire and rehabilitate two (2) existing dwelling units
for use as affordable rental units for income-eligible, elderly households.  The dwelling units consist
of one (1) duplexes located on Normand Drive.

Budget & Financial Summary: These funds are available in the FY 2012 and FY13 HOME budget.

Attachments:
Attachment 1: Contract and Grant for HOME Programs

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™





















































































































City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 216-0413 Name: FM 2818 Capacity Improvements Design Contract

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/8/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional Services Contract (Contract No.
16300415) with Binkley and Barfield, Inc., in the amount of $571,102.50, for engineering and
surveying services associated with the FM 2818 Capacity Improvements Design Project.

Sponsors: Donald Harmon

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Project Location Map 8.5x11 - FM2818 Capacity Improvements

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional Services Contract (Contract No. 16300415) with Binkley
and Barfield, Inc., in the amount of $571,102.50, for engineering and surveying services associated with the FM 2818
Capacity Improvements Design Project.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends Council approve the contract.

Summary: Binkley and Barfield, Inc., was contacted to submit a proposal for the design of the FM2818 Capacity
Improvements project based upon their selection as being the most highly qualified firm in RFQ #16-024. The scope of this
contract is for engineering and surveying services in connection with the FM2818 engineering summary report and
schematic design. The project scope includes conceptual and schematic design for the FM2818 corridor from FM2154 to
the George Bush Drive intersection and generally includes data collection, accident and traffic analysis, conceptual design,
schematic design, environmental documentation, public involvement, ROW/easement identification, utility coordination,
project management, and topographic surveying.

Budget & Financial Summary: A budget of $655,000 is included for this project in the Streets Capital Improvement Projects
Fund. Funds in the amount of $12,219 have been expended or committed to date, leaving a balance of $642,781 for
design. It is anticipated that construction of the project will be completed by TxDOT.

Attachments:

1. Contract on file in the City Secretary's Office
2. Project Location Map

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4602198&GUID=69452597-1E8F-4817-8366-B7E974FEDB63


File #: 16-0413, Version: 2

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



HARVEY MITCHELL PKWY

W
ELLBORN RD

FM
 2154

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000500 1,000 1,500
Feet Feet

Southwest

W.A
Tarrow

John
Crompton

HOLLEMAN

DRIV
E

MA R KET
S TREE T

SOUTHWEST

PARKWAY

BUSHL IB

RAR
Y

CR

DOWLIN
G R

OAD

JOHN KIMBROUGH

BOULEVARD

PENBERTHY

DRIVE

NEVA
DA

STREET

CORMIE
R

ST

ELEANOR
STREET

BAR BARABUSH DRIVE

W
O

OD
SM

AN
DR

IV
E

CANYO N
CR

EEK

CI RC
LE

GEORGE BUSH

DRIVE WEST
THE

WO
O

D
LANDS

WILLIA

M
S

S
T

TU
RN

AROUND

JONES-BUTLER ROAD

EMERGENCY

RESPONSE DR

GEORGIA

STREET

HOLLEMAN

DRIVE WEST

HOLLEMAN

DRIVE SOUTH

CORREGI DORDRIVE

SADDLE

LANE

PRIVA
TE

TA
MU D

RIVE

SERVICEST

TA

MU SEW
ER

PLANT
RD

QUAIL

RUN

SIEN
NA

DRIVE

ARIZONA

STREET

PEN
A ST

CAROLINA STREET

PR
IVATE

AC
CESS

HARVICK
ST

L E

G ACYL

ANE

GRIDIRON
DRIVE

DETROIT

STREETPHOENIX

STREET

REE
D

DR

EASTERWOODSERVICE RD

LAUDERBACK
ST

DOHRN ST

M
ARIO

N PUG
H DRIVE

SOUTH
LAND

STREET

METHNER ST

W
ELLBO

RN
ROAD

CORPS
OBSTACLE

COURSE

DW
ONEY

HERVEY

DRIVE

FRONTAGE ROAD
OFF RAMP

HARVEY MITCHELL
PARKWAY SOUTH

ALL
EY

ON RA MP

LU
TH

ER S
TR

EET W
EST

NUCLEAR

SCIENCE ROAD

A

A

B

B

C

C

D

D

E

E

5 5

4 4

3 3

2 2

1 1

Created: 7/21/2016

Legend
Project Location

Streets
Streets

Railroad

Texas A&M Property

Greenways

Parks

Property Lines

City Limit

ETJ 

Project Location Map
FM2818 Capacity Improvements

±

±

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane
Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983

Overview Map



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0419 Name: Lick Creek WWTP Generator Replacement

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/8/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional Services Contract (Contract No.
16300529) with Jones & Carter, Inc. for $152,500 for the final design and construction phase services
for the Lick Creek Generator Replacement Project.

Sponsors: Donald Harmon

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Lick Creek Location Map

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Professional Services Contract (Contract No. 16300529) with Jones &
Carter, Inc. for $152,500 for the final design and construction phase services for the Lick Creek Generator Replacement
Project.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the professional services contract.

Summary: The scope of this contract includes mapping, final design, geotechnical investigation services, bid phase
services, construction phase services, and construction materials testing. This project was originally combined with two
other projects and formed the Treatment Plant Major Equipment Replacement Project and a Preliminary Engineering
Report (PER) was completed. This contract is a follow on contract to finalize design and construct the replacement
generator with associated appurtenances for the Lick Creek Waste Water Treatment Plant. The purpose of this project is to
provide a new backup generator that will operate all process equipment at the Lick Creek Treatment Plant in case of an
emergency or power outage.

This project was separated from the Treatment Plant Major Equipment Replacement project due to immediate need of the
generator and recommendation from the PER.

Jones & Carter, Inc., was selected as the most highly qualified firm as part of RFQ# 15-023 for the Treatment Plant Major
Equipment Plant Project.

Budget & Financial Summary: Funds in the amount of $796,000 are currently budgeted for this project in the Wastewater
Capital Improvement Projects Fund. However, based on the results of the PER, the estimate for the total cost of this design
and construction of this project has been revised to $1,375,000. This overage will be factored into the FY17 CIP and the
applicable forecasts.

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604650&GUID=959F5405-43C7-45A2-8F00-7DF0BBE2D4D8


File #: 16-0419, Version: 1

Attachments:

1. Contract - On file in the City Secretary’s Office
2. Project Location Map

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



ROCK PRAIRIE RD

STONEBROOK
DR

WINDHAM RANCH RD

BIRD POND RD

ST ANDREWS DR

ONYX DR

HARRIS 
DR

ALEXANDR IA AV

SPEARMAN DR

DECATUR DR

WILLIAMS CRE EK DR

NE W A RK
C

R

ROCK
CLIFFELO

MISSION HILLSDR

AUGUSTACR

BR
ADL

EY
RD

LAKEWAY DR

PIPELINE RD

FROST DR

CA
RL

L L
N

P1-731

FA
UL

KN
ER

DR

WAYFARER LN

P EBBLE CREEK PW

NA
NT

UC
KET DR

BARRON RD

CASTL
EG

ATEDR

HARPER'S FERRY RDM
ID SUMMER LN

OLD
ARRI NGTON

RD

FONTAINE DR

M ISTY LN

R OYAL ADELADE DR

FRONTAGE 6 RD

GREENS PRAIRIE RD W

JOHNSON CREEKLO

CARTE R
LA

KE
DR

TONKAWAY LAKE

SA
NDPIPERCV

BALL CR

WILL
IAM D FITCH PW

ARRINGTON RD

SH 6

SOUTH OAKS DR

TU
RK RANCH RD

QUALITY CR

OLD
EN

LN

Lick Creek Generator Replacement Plot Date: 7/8/2016

s

Lick Creek Waste Water Treatment Plant



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0420 Name: Lincoln Center Construction Contract

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/8/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding construction contract 16300432 with JaCody
Construction, LP LLC, in the amount of $3,366,146 for renovations to the existing facility and
construction of a new multi-purpose building for the Lincoln Recreation Center.

Sponsors: Donald Harmon

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: ITB 16-075 tabulation - 16-075 Tabulation

Project location map

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding construction contract 16300432 with JaCody Construction, LP LLC,
in the amount of $3,366,146 for renovations to the existing facility and construction of a new multi-purpose building for the
Lincoln Recreation Center.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the construction contract.

Summary: This project will construct a new 15,355 square foot multi-purpose facility at the Lincoln Recreation Center. The
new building will include a gymnasium and multiple activity rooms and support spaces. Once the new addition is
constructed, this project also includes renovations to the existing facility, including asbestos abatement and technology
updates. This contract also includes three bid alternates for building a walkway cover, repairing the existing storage
building and leveling the existing gymnasium.

Budget & Financial Summary: Budget in the amount of $4,342,973 is included for this project in the Parks Capital
Improvement Projects Fund. A total of $317,676 has been expended or committed to date, leaving a balance of $4,025,297
for construction and related expenditures.

Attachments:

1. Contract No. 16300432 (on file with the City Secretary)
2. Bid Tabulation ITB #16-075
3. Project Location Map

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604667&GUID=B6219F22-A8C4-47B4-8B91-8B0D6C27D224
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604668&GUID=DAEC9D9B-4324-4F66-A4E7-7D14A03CA21B


City of College Station - Purchasing Division
Bid Tabulation for #16-075
"Lincoln Center Addition"

Open Date: Thursday, June 30, 2016 @ 2:00 PM

JaCody Construction, 
LP LLC LDF Construction Inc. Dudley Construction, 

Ltd
Pepper-Lawson 

Construction, L.P.

Lump Sum Bid $3,249,166.00 $3,340,000.00 $3,843,000.00 $4,200,000.00

1 Aluminum Walkway Cover $68,380.00 $69,700.00 $63,000.00 $68,135.00

2 Repairs to Storage/Shop Building $12,960.00 $147,000.00 $5,000.00 $30,000.00

3 Leveling of Existing Gymnasium $35,640.00 $34,900.00 $38,000.00 No Bid

$3,366,146.00 $3,591,600.00 $3,949,000.00 $4,298,135.00

1 4" Flatwork Concrete (all prep and 
installation full system) per SF $6.75 $5.61 $6.50 $6.10

2 6" Drive Paving Concrete (All prep and 
installation full system) per SF $7.00 $7.95 $8.50 $8.00

1 Amount included in the Base Bid for Trench 
Safety $0.00 $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $2,500.00

Y Y Y Y
Y Y Y Y
Y Y Y Y

Bid Certification
Bid Bond

Addendum Acknowledged

Base Bid

Alternate

Unit Pricing (Included in Base Bid)

Trench Safety

Total Lump Sum Bid + Alternates  



HOLLEMAN DR

WE
LL

BO
RN

 RD

MO
NT

CL
AI

R A
V

DE
TR

OI
T

ST

LONNIE LN

EL
EA

NO
R 

ST

AR
IZO

NA
 ST

ON
EY

 H
ER

VE
Y D

R

CA
RO

LIN
A S

T

PH
OE

NI
X S

T

THOMPSON ST

EDWARD ST

   

The accuracy of this data is limited to the validity
and accuracy of available data, and therefore the
city makes no representation or warranties as to the
accuracy of the data. Any party using the data does
so at their own risk. This data is produced pursuant
to the Texas Public Information Act. For specific
questions regarding this plan contact Planning and
Development Services.

.
Lincoln Recreation Center

Additions & Renovation
Project Location Map

Project 
Location



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0421 Name: Rock Prairie Road West Widening

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/8/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a Professional Services Contract
(Contract No. 16300553) with Binkley & Barfield in the amount of $650,326 for the professional
engineering services related to the design of the Rock Prairie Road West Widening Project (ST1604).

Sponsors: Donald Harmon

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Project Map

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a Professional Services Contract (Contract No.
16300553) with Binkley & Barfield in the amount of $650,326 for the professional engineering services related to the design
of the Rock Prairie Road West Widening Project (ST1604).

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the professional services contract.

Summary: The project includes the reconstruction of Rock Prairie West from approximately Wellborn Road to Holleman
Drive. The existing asphalt road is intended to be replaced with a 3 lane major collector concrete roadway with expansion to
a 4 lane minor arterial roadway at the intersections of Wellborn Road and Holleman. Project will include curb, gutter,
underground storm sewer, sidewalks and adjustment to the railroad crossing & intersection of Rock Prairie and Wellborn
Road.

This project was approved with the FY16 budget to be funded with certificates of obligation and is one of several
transportation projects originally prioritized by the 2015 Citizen Advisory Committee.

Budget & Financial Summary: A total project budget of $4,985,000 is included for this project in the Streets Capital
Improvement Projects Fund.

Attachments:

1. Contract No. 16300553 (on file with the City Secretary’s Office)
2. Project Location Map

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4602229&GUID=B126C3E1-078D-4C1B-9E0C-2D185BF5908A


HOLLEMAN DR S

ROCK PRAIRIE RD

FM 2154

FM 2154

OLD WELLBORN RD

HANNOVER ST

GENERAL PW

CAIN RD

OAK CREST

MARTA ST
FREDRICK CT

VON TRAPP LN
AIRBORNE

AV

DEACON DR W

RIDG ECREST

GRAHAM RD N

   

.

Rock Prairie West Widening Project



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0435 Name: Purchase of Distribution Line Sensors

Status:Type: Bid Award Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/13/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the award of Bid 16-087 to Techline, Inc. in
the amount of $51,600 for the purchase of distribution line sensors.

Sponsors: Timothy Crabb

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Bid Tab for 16-087

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the award of Bid 16-087 to Techline, Inc. in
the amount of $51,600 for the purchase of distribution line sensors.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends the approval of award for this bid to the lowest qualified bidder, Techline, Inc., in
the amount of $51,600.

Summary:

LineScope distribution line sensors are devices that are placed on overhead distribution lines that will
provide information on the location of outages back to the Operation Center through a
communication system recently installed for controlling other electric devices. This will significantly
reduce the response time for outages and will allow for quicker isolation of the problem area and the
restoration of service to our customers. These devices will also increase safety for our employees by
minimizing the switching operations required when trying to determine the location of an outage.
This bid was for ten (10) sets of these devices, and ultimately this technology will be deployed to
other areas. On July 1, 2016, three (3) sealed bids were received and opened in response to
Invitation to Bid #16-087 for the purchase of distribution line sensors. These bids were evaluated and
ranked. The lowest qualified bidder was Techline, Inc., for $51,600.

Budget & Financial Summary:
Funds for this project are budgeted and available in the Electric Capital Improvement Projects Fund.

Attachments:
1. Bid Tab 16-087

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4564510&GUID=E5493E3F-366F-4E89-A129-0C4330B6FF86


File #: 16-0435, Version: 1

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City of College Station - Purchasing Division
Bid Tabulation for #16-087

"Purchase of Distribution Line Sensors"
Open Date: Friday, July 1, 2016 @ 2:00 PM

Item Description Qty UOM Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1
LineScope™ Smart Power 
Monitor system for 15 kV 
(Line/Ground) power lines. 

10 each $5,160.00 $51,600.00 $5,186.34 $51,863.40 $5,285.00 $52,850.00 No Bid

Soloman CorporationGraybar Electric

6-8 weeks

Y

KBS Electrical Distribution

6-8 weeks

Y

Delivery Time (weeks) 6-8 weeks

Techline, Inc.

YBid Certification  



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0436 Name: Rejection of Bids for Underground Cable Installation

Status:Type: Bid Award Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/13/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the rejection bids 16-006 and 16-059 for the
University Drive Underground Cable Installation Project.

Sponsors: Timothy Crabb

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the rejection bids 16-006 and 16-059 for the
University Drive Underground Cable Installation Project.

Relationship to Strategic Goals: (Select all that apply)

· Financially Sustainable City

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends that Council reject bids 16-006 and 16-059 for the University Drive Underground
Cable Installation Project.

Summary:

The University Drive Underground Cable Installation Project was original placed online for
competitive bidding in September of 2015. On October 8, 2015, Bid 16-006 was opened. No bids
were received for evaluation.

The Electric Department revised some of the project specifications, and the project was placed online
again as Bid 16-059. On March 23, 2016, three competitive bids were received and opened by the
Purchasing Department. The apparent low bidder had several errors on their pricing submission, and
choose to withdraw their bid for material purposes. The next low bid was above the expected budget
of the project.

The Electric Department has decided not to bid this project for a third time. This work will be
completed utilizing the existing contracts for various electric construction and maintenance needs,
and through in-house labor.

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 16-0436, Version: 1

Budget & Financial Summary:

There is no budgetary or financial impact to reject proposals.

Attachments:

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 216-0445 Name: Resolution to Set 2nd Public Hearing on Water and
Wastewater Impact Fees

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/14/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a Resolution setting a public
hearing date of September 22, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., to consider the imposition of water and wastewater
impact fees.

Sponsors: Alan Gibbs

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 15B RES hearing w-ww IF

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a Resolution setting a public
hearing date of September 22, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., to consider the imposition of water and wastewater
impact fees.

Relationship to Strategic Goals: Core Services and Infrastructure, and a Diverse Growing
Economy

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Summary: This resolution sets the date and time for a public hearing on water and wastewater
impact fees. On November 12, 2015, City Council directed staff to bring forward contracts for
engineering firms to perform studies regarding possible implementation of impact fees for water,
wastewater, and roadways. On January 28th, the City Council approved a contact with Freese and
Nichols, Inc. for the water and wastewater impact fee study. In accordance with Local Government
Code 395.047, a resolution must be approved by City Council to establish a public hearing date to
consider the imposition of citywide water impact fees, and for the imposition of citywide and extra-
territorial jurisdiction wastewater impact fees. The first public hearing to consider the land use
assumptions and capital improvements plans was at the July 14th City Council meeting.

Budget & Financial Summary: N/A
Legal Review:  Yes.

Attachments:
1. Resolution

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4607038&GUID=E12BC126-ED2D-4311-9424-EA6F155E3AA8


File #: 16-0445, Version: 2

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016, FOR 
CONSIDERATION OF THE IMPOSITION OF WATER AND WASTEWATER  IMPACT 
FEES. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is considering  
impact fees for water and wastewater services; and 
 
WHEREAS, § 395.047 Texas Local Government Code sets forth that a political subdivision 
must adopt an order or resolution establishing a public hearing date to discuss the imposition 
of impact fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Impact Fee Advisory Committee for Water and Wastewater has reviewed and 
made its recommendations to City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the aforesaid statutory requirement the City Council desires to 
call a public hearing to discuss and consider water and wastewater impact fees, now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Resolution are 

hereby declared true and correct. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas hereby calls for a 

public hearing to be held during the regular Council session on September 22, 
2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at 1101 Texas Avenue, College 
Station, Texas.  The purpose of this public hearing is to discuss the imposition 
of system-wide impact fees for water and wastewater services.   

  
PART 2: That City staff is hereby authorized and directed to notice said public hearing 

and to take all reasonable measures to give effect to this Resolution, including 
preparing notice in accordance with § 395.049 Texas Government Code. 

 
 
ADOPTED this 11th day of August, A.D. 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 



 

 

City Attorney 



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0449 Name: Copy Printing

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/18/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the annual copy and print services blanket
order second renewal with Alphagraphics (formerly Tops Printing) for $80,000; Copy Corner for
$40,000; and Office Depot (available through the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance
Cooperative (NIPA)) for $20,000. The total not to exceed amount is $140,000 for copy and print
services

Sponsors: Mary Ellen Leonard

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Bid 14-072 Signed Copy and Print - AlphaGraphics

Bid 14-072 Signed Copy and Print - Copy Corner

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the annual copy and print services blanket order second
renewal with Alphagraphics (formerly Tops Printing) for $80,000; Copy Corner for $40,000; and Office Depot
(available through the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Cooperative (NIPA)) for $20,000. The
total not to exceed amount is $140,000 for copy and print services

Relationship to Strategic Goals: Financially Sustainable City

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the renewal for the annual blanket order with
Alphagraphics for $80,000, Copy Corner for $40,000 and Office Depot (NIPA) for $20,000. These estimates are
based on the past year’s history for city-wide printing and copying.

Summary: Staff issued a Request for Proposal, #14-072, in July 2014 for the City’s Annual Copy and Print
Services. Four (4) sealed proposals were received and were reviewed by a committee of representatives from
several City departments. Council approved the original award on August 14, 2014 as Item 2o. Award
recommendations were based on the following categories:

I. Category I - Digital Print and Copy
This category includes standard black/white copies/prints; standard color copies/prints; some oversize
black/white/color copies/prints; blueprints and finishing services. A multiple award is recommended so
departments may choose based on pricing and convenience:

Alphagraphics $60,000
Copy Corner $40,000
Office Depot (NIPA)* $20,000

*Office Depot did not submit a proposal in response to this RFP; however, they were awarded a contract
which was competitively bid by the NIPA purchasing cooperative. This contract is available for our use
through our Interlocal Agreement with NIPA.

II. Category II - Offset Printing and High Volume Color Printing
This category includes City letterhead, pre-printed envelopes and business cards. Award is

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4583173&GUID=726CF8C3-E485-4CE8-94C9-58B8C4A43767
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4583174&GUID=1F9BCBA1-1E68-4EC7-B87A-1F239F03F8F1


File #: 16-0449, Version: 1

recommended to:

Alphagraphics  $20,000

Upon Council approval, staff will issue blanket orders to be used by all City departments throughout the year.
This will be the second and final renewal term.

Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in each Department for copying and
printing services.

Reviewed and Approved by Legal: N/A

Attachments: Renewal Letters

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™







City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0450 Name: Annual Electric Distribution Poles

Status:Type: Presentation Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/18/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on Renewal 1 of the award for the annual purchase of
electric distribution poles, which will be maintained in electrical inventory and expended as needed.
The total recommended award is $525,996 to Techline, Inc. This includes a vendor requested overall
price increase of 4.35%.

Sponsors: Mary Ellen Leonard

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Bid 15-062 Signed Electric Distribution Poles

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on Renewal 1 of the award for the annual purchase of
electric distribution poles, which will be maintained in electrical inventory and expended as needed. The
total recommended award is $525,996 to Techline, Inc. This includes a vendor requested overall price
increase of 4.35%.

Relationship to Strategic Goals: Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends renewal 1 of the award for an annual blanket order to Techline
for the purchase of electric distribution poles.

Summary: On June 25, 2015, seven (7) sealed bids were received and opened for Invitation to Bid 15-
062, for the annual purchase of electric distribution poles. Electric staff evaluated the bids for compliance
to the needed specifications. Techline, Inc. submitted the lowest overall bid, which met all specifications.

The original bid allowed for up to two additional one year terms. This will be the first of the two possible
renewal terms. Techline requested pricing increases, as allowed in the original bid specifications. Each line
item increase is within the allowable percentage, and the overall increase is 4.35%.

Upon approval, a blanket order will be issued to Techline. Orders will be placed throughout the year, and
the materials will be placed and maintained in the electrical inventory and expensed as needed.

Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are budgeted and available in the Electrical Fund. Various
projects may be expensed as supplies are pulled from inventory and issued.

Reviewed and Approved by Legal: N/A

Attachments: Bid #15-062 Renewal 1 Letter with New Pricing

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4583175&GUID=82067AB3-8C56-428E-A087-7CD2F5536198


File #: 16-0450, Version: 1

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



RENEWAL ACCEPTANCE

By signing herewith, I aclmowledge and agree to renew Bid 15-062, for the Annual Blanket Order
for Electric Distribution Poles, in accordance with all terms and conditions previously agreed to
and accepted, for an amount not to exceed Five Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Nine Hundred
Ninety Six and No/100 Dollars ($525,996.00). This includes vendor requested increases to line
items as shown on the following page.

I understand this renewal term will be for the period beginning August 18, 2016 through August
17, 2017. This is the first of two possible renewals.

TECHLINE, INC.  /f'

Plqnted N} e: x. r
'

/ o < l(
Title: I

e

Date: 7/¢¢/J&



City of College Station - Purchasing Division
Bid Tabulation for #15-062

"Annual Pm'ehase of Electric Distribution Poles"

Open Date: Thursday, June 25, 2015 @ 2:00 p.m.
Renewal 1

Item   Qty Unit COCSInventory#

GROUP 'A' MATERIALS (Steel Poles)

A1    10  ea   285-065-00020

A2    10   ea   285-065-00010

A3     10   ea   285-065-00011

A4     5   ea   285-065-00012

A5     5   ea   285-065-00013

Description

30' Steel Pole

40' Steel Pole

45' Steel Pole

50' Steel Pole

55' Steel Pole

Techline - Original Bid                   Renewal 1

Ground   Unit Price  TotalPrice              % ChangeLine                           Unit Price             Total Price
Movement

Total GroupA

76,000          $824.00       $8,240.00        $865.00           4.98%        $8,650.00

95,000    $1,115.00  $11,150.00   $1,170.00    4.93%   $11,700.00

140,000       $1,569.00    $15,690.00     $1,64%00         4.97%       $16,470.00

151,000       $1,81i.00     $9,055.00       $1,901.00         4.97%        $9,505.00

170,000   $2,042.00  $10,210.00   $2,144.00    5.00%   $10,720.00

$54,345.00                                                 $57,045.00

GROUP 'B' MATERIALS (Steel Self-Supporting Poles)

B1     3   ea   285-065-00016  150'SteelSelfSupp°rtingPolew/    180,000   $1,947.00  $5,841.00   $2,044.00    4.98%    $6,132.00
6 degree angle

B2     3   ea   285-065-00017  50'SteelSelfSupportingPolew/    300,000   $2,864.00  $8,592.00   $3,007.00    4.99%    $9,021.00
12 degree angle

B3    3   ea   285-065-00018 50'SteelSelfSupportingPolew/   400,000   $3,077.00  $9,231.00  $3,230.00    4.97%   $9,690.00
18 degree angle

B4    2   ea   285-065-000    60' Steel Self Supporting Pole w/   406,000   $3,978.00  $7,956.00  $4,175.00    4.95%   $8,350.00
--  6 degree angle

B5     2   ea   285-065-000  60'SteelSelfSupportingPolew/    650,000   $5,041.00  $10,082.00   $5,293.00     5.00%   $10,586.00
12 degree angle

B6    2   ea   285-065-000    60'SteelSelfSupportingPolew/   874,000   $6,106.00  $12,212.00  $6,410.00    4.98%   $12,820.00
--  18 degree angle

Total Group B             $53,914.00                        $56,599.00

GROUP 'C' MATERIALS (Fiberglass Composite Poles)

CI     10   ea   285-065-00031  30'Fiberglass ComposilePole

C2    30   ea   285-065-00032  40'Fiberglass Composite Pole

C3    30   ea   285-065-00033  45'Fiberglass Composite Pole

C4     15   ea   285-065-00034  50' Fiberglass Composite Pole

C5     15   ea   285-065-00035  55'Fiberglass Composite Pole

Total Group C

87,975    $1,552.00  $15,520.00

I00,640   $1,811.00  $54,330.00

II4,793       $1,925.00    $57,750.00

128,945   $2,187.00  $32,805.00

143,098   $3,258.00  $48,870.00

$209,275.00

$1,633.00    5.22%   $16,330.00

$1,901.00         4.97%       $57,030.00

$2,021.00         4.99%       $60,630.00

$2,295.00    4.94%   $34,425.00

$3,420.00         4.97%       $51,300.00

$219,715.00

GROUP 'D' MATERIALS (Tapered Fiberglass Composite Poles)

D1     2   ea   285-065-00036  50' Tapered Shaft Fiberglass
Composite Pole w/6 degree angle

D2     2   ea   285-065-00026  50'Tapered Shaft Fiberglass
Composite Pole w/12 degree
50' Tapered Shaft Fiberglass

D3     2   ea   285-065-00037  Composite Poie w/18 degree

Total Group D

GROUP 'E' I, kTERIALS (Self Supporting Prestressed Spun Cast Coner,

35" Prestressed Spun Cast

Concrete Pole
40" Prestressed Spun Cast

Concrete Pole
45" Prestressed Spun Cast

Concrete Pole
50" Prestressed Spun Cast

Concrete Pole
55" Prestressed Spun Cast

Concrete Pole

E1    5   ea   540-070-00020

E2     10   ea   540-070-00010

E3    25  ea   540-070-00008

E4    15  ea   540-070-00009

E5     10   ea   540-070-00011

Total Group E

179,010   $2,778.00  $5,556.00

334,950       $3,448.00     $6,896.00

444,600       $3,575.00!   $7,150.00

$19,602.00

$2,917.00         5.00%        $5,834.00

$3,620.00         4.99%        $7,240.00

$3,753,00    4.98%    $7,506.00

$20,580.00

161,000   $1,732.00  $8,660.00   $1,783.00    2.94%    $8,915.00

179,000       $1,820.00    $18,200.00     $1,874.00         2.97%     i  $18,740.00

211,000       $1,892.00    $47,300.00     $1,948.00         2.96%       $48,700.00

244,000   $2,025.00  $30,375.00   $2,085.00    2.96%   $31,275.00

267,000       $2,130.00    $21,300.00     $2,193.00         2.96%       $21,930.00

$125,835.00                       $129,560.00

GROUP 'F' MATERIALS (Self Suppor ling Prestressed Spun Cast Coner,

F1     3   ea   540-070-00021  50'Prestressed Spun Cast
Concrete Pole w/6 degree angle

F2     3   ea   540-070-00018  50' Prestressed Spun Cast
Concrete Pole w/12 degree angle

F3     3   ea   540-070-00019  50'Prestressed Spun Cast
Concrete Pole w/18 degree angle

F4     2   ea   540-070-00022  60' Prestressed Spun Cast
Concrete Pole w/6 degree anglo

F5     2   ea   540-070-00023  60'PrestressedSpunCast
Concrete Pole w/12 degree angle

F6     2   ea   540-070-00024  60' Prestressed Spun Cast
Concrete Pole w/18 degree angle

Total Group F

TO'I'AL

RECOMMENDED
Certification of Bi

239,000       $2,025.00     $6,075.00       $2,085.00         2.96%        $6,255.00

391,000       $2,420.00     $7,260.00       $2,492.00         2.98%        $7,476.00

513,000   $2,595.00  $7,785.00 I  $2,724.00    4.97%    $8,172.00

469,000       $2,860.00     $5,720.00       $2,945.00         2.97%        $5,890.00

772,000       $3,394.00     $6,788.00       $3,495.00         2.98%        $6,990.00

951,000       $3,745.00     $7,490.00      $3,857.00         2.99%        $7,714.00

$41,118.00                                                 $42,497.00

$504,089.00               $525,996.00
Y                    Overall Increase    J   4.35%



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0455 Name: Annual Transformer Repair and Rebuilt

Status:Type: Bid Award Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/20/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the bid award of annual transformer repair
and rebuild services to Greenville Transformer Company, Inc. in the amount of $64,515.85.

Sponsors: Timothy Crabb

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Bid Tab 16-089

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the bid award of annual transformer repair
and rebuild services to Greenville Transformer Company, Inc. in the amount of $64,515.85.

Relationship to Strategic Goals: (Select all that apply)

· Financially Sustainable City

· Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends that Council approve the award of an annual award with Greenville Transformer
Company, Inc. for the repair and rebuild of transformers as needed, for an amount not to exceed
$64,515.85 annually.

Summary:

Two (2) sealed, competitive bids were received and opened on July 15, 2016. Greenville Transformer
Company, Inc. took exception to the cost of oil being included in the bid price, and included it at a
cost of $6.00/gallon. Staff estimated the amount of oil which would be used, and included the
additional cost into the bid tabulation. Greenville Transformer Company, Inc is the lowest responsible
bidder. Staff is familiar with the quality of the work provided and the reputation of the recommended
vendor.

Budget & Financial Summary:

Funds are budgeted and available in the Electrical Fund. Funds will be expensed as transformer
repairs are needed throughout the term of the award.

Attachments:
Bid Tabulatoin #16-089

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4577776&GUID=9AFA9B20-5CB3-428A-9DE1-0390D1A66543


File #: 16-0455, Version: 1

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City of College Station - Purchasing Division
Bid Tabulation for #16-089

"Annual Transformer Repair and Rebuild"
Open Date: Friday, July 15, 2016 @ 2:00 p.m.

1. Transformer Repair & Rewind
A. Single Phase Pole Mounted

Size Est. Category I Category II Extended Category I Category II Extended 
(kVA) Quantity (Ref Only) Unit Cost Cost (Ref Only) Unit Cost Cost

10 1 $175.00 $175.00 $175.00 $140.00 $210.00 $210.00
15 10 $205.00 $205.00 $2,050.00 $140.00 $235.00 $2,350.00
25 15 $245.00 $245.00 $3,675.00 $145.00 $240.00 $3,600.00

37.5 10 $370.00 $370.00 $3,700.00 $172.00 $270.00 $2,700.00
50 5 $430.00 $430.00 $2,150.00 $206.00 $310.00 $1,550.00
75 1 $530.00 $530.00 $530.00 $230.00 $370.00 $370.00

100 1 $605.00 $605.00 $605.00 $255.00 $425.00 $425.00
167 1 $940.00 $940.00 $940.00 $270.00 $460.00 $460.00
250 1 $1,175.00 $1,175.00 $1,175.00 $325.00 $510.00 $510.00
333 1 $1,580.00 $1,580.00 $1,580.00 $475.00 $675.00 $675.00
500 1 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $475.00 $700.00 $700.00

Subtotal $18,830.00 Subtotal $13,550.00

B. Single Phase Pad Mounted
Size Est. Category I Category II Extended Category I Category II Extended 

(kVA) Quantity (Ref Only) Unit Cost Cost (Ref Only) Unit Cost Cost
25 10 $430.00 $430.00 $4,300.00 $215.00 $316.00 $3,160.00

37.5 5 $495.00 $495.00 $2,475.00 $235.00 $354.00 $1,770.00
50 1 $555.00 $555.00 $555.00 $252.00 $375.00 $375.00
75 1 $640.00 $640.00 $640.00 $301.00 $435.00 $435.00

100 1 $785.00 $785.00 $785.00 $337.00 $485.00 $485.00
165 1 $1,180.00 $1,180.00 $1,180.00 $486.00 $648.00 $648.00
250 1 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $656.00 $855.00 $855.00

Subtotal $11,585.00 Subtotal $7,728.00

C. Three Phase Pad Mounted Transformer
Size Est. Category I Category II Extended Category I Category II Extended 

(kVA) Quantity (Ref Only) Unit Cost Cost (Ref Only) Unit Cost Cost
75 1 $1,910.00 $1,910.00 $1,910.00 $672.00 $875.00 $875.00

112.5 1 $2,165.00 $2,165.00 $2,165.00 $839.00 $1,065.00 $1,065.00
150 1 $2,225.00 $2,225.00 $2,225.00 $880.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00
225 1 $2,625.00 $2,625.00 $2,625.00 $880.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00
300 1 $2,880.00 $2,880.00 $2,880.00 $1,140.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
500 1 $3,425.00 $3,425.00 $3,425.00 $1,552.00 $2,040.00 $2,040.00
750 1 $5,375.00 $5,375.00 $5,375.00 $2,030.00 $2,690.00 $2,690.00

1000 1 $5,820.00 $5,820.00 $5,820.00 $2,330.00 $3,090.00 $3,090.00
1500 1 $8,150.00 $8,150.00 $8,150.00 $3,080.00 $4,060.00 $4,060.00
2000 0 $9,600.00 $9,600.00 $0.00 $3,080.00 $4,090.00 $0.00
2500 0 $10,585.00 $10,585.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $6,039.00 $0.00

Subtotal $34,575.00 Subtotal $17,620.00

Group I Total $64,990.00 Group I Total $38,898.00

Greenville Transformer Company, Inc.Solomon Corporation



City of College Station - Purchasing Division
Bid Tabulation for #16-089

"Annual Transformer Repair and Rebuild"
Open Date: Friday, July 15, 2016 @ 2:00 p.m.

Greenville Transformer Company, Inc.Solomon Corporation

II. Additional Parts
A. Pole Mount

Est. Qty Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost
Primary Bushings 7200 10 $25.00 $250.00 $37.91 $379.10
Arrester 9/10 KV $40.00 $0.00 $46.88 $0.00
4 Hole Spade Bushing

 3/8" Spade $25.00 $0.00 $17.85 $0.00
1/2" Spade $25.00 $0.00 $19.10 $0.00
5/8" Spade $25.00 $0.00 $47.50 $0.00
3/4" Spade $25.00 $0.00 $51.00 $0.00

6 Hole Spade Bushing
1" Spade $75.00 $0.00 $80.74 $0.00
1 1/4" Spade $75.00 $0.00 $80.74 $0.00

Protective Fuse Link $10.00 $0.00 $4.50 $0.00
TapChanger - External $60.00 $0.00 $27.00 $0.00
Ground Strap $0.00 $0.00 $4.00 $0.00
Clamp $0.00 $0.00 $4.00 $0.00
Eyebolt 5 $0.00 $0.00 $2.00 $10.00
Secondary bushings 5 $10.00 $50.00 $11.50 $57.50
Hangers 2 $25.00 $50.00 $10.00 $20.00

Subtotal $350.00 Subtotal $466.60

B. Pad Mount
Est. Qty Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost

Bushing Well 25 $35.00 $875.00 $35.00 $875.00
Bushing Insert 25 $40.00 $1,000.00 $34.00 $850.00

15 $80.00 $1,200.00 $44.50 $667.50
10 $30.00 $300.00 $14.00 $140.00

$10.00 $0.00 $10.50 $0.00
$54.00 $0.00 $42.00 $0.00
$39.00 $0.00 $36.00 $0.00

1 ph $0.00 $0.00 $26.00 $0.00
2 ph $0.00 $0.00 $74.15 $0.00
3 ph 3 $60.00 $180.00 $91.25 $273.75

15 $0.00 $0.00 $7.00 $105.00
$0.00 $0.00 $7.00 $0.00

$25.00 $0.00 $32.00 $0.00
5 $25.00 $125.00 $28.90 $144.50

           Poles & 1 Phase Pads $0.00 $0.00 $5.00 $0.00
3 Phase Pads $0.00 $0.00 $8.50 $0.00

Penta Bolts 10 $0.00 $0.00 $4.25 $42.50
Plugs 15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Adapters 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Clamps 15 $0.00 $0.00 $4.00 $60.00
Spades 5 $0.00 $0.00 $15.00 $75.00

Subtotal $3,680.00 Subtotal $3,233.25

Group II Total $4,030.00 Group II Total $3,699.85

*Additional Oil Cost $21,918.00

GRAND TOTAL $69,020.00 $64,515.85

Nameplate

Drip Gaurds

Secondary Bushings

Oil Temp Gauge
Oil Level Gauge
TapChanger 

Bay O Net Assy
Bay O Net Fusing
Isolation Link

Part

Part

Pressure Vacuum Gauge
Drain Valve w/ Sampler

$ per kVA (Pad-Mount)
See Attached
See Attached

Parking Stand

Salvage Value

Bid Certification

$ per kVA (Overhead)

Exceptions
 *Oil $6.00/gallon (due to the wide variation of gallons per 
unit size)                                                                 

Delivery 4 weeks 42 days

* Certified PCB Test $24.00 (These will be performed on any 
unit that fails the regular Chlor-N-Oil Test)

$2.00
$2.20

Y Y



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0460 Name: FY 16-17 Budget Call Public Hearing

Status:Type: Presentation Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/22/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on calling a public hearing on the City of College Station
FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget for Thursday September 8, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the City Hall Council
Chambers.

Sponsors: Jeff Kersten

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on calling a public hearing on the City of College Station FY
2016-2017 Proposed Budget for Thursday September 8, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the City Hall Council
Chambers.

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends the City Council call a public hearing on the City of
College Station FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget for Thursday September 8, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the City
Hall Council Chambers.

Summary: State law says that notice of the public hearing on the budget must be made no less
than 10 days prior to the meeting for the public hearing.  After the public hearing the Council may insert
or delete items or may increase or decrease items so long as the total of any increases or insertions do
not increase the total budget by 3% or more.

Budget & Financial Summary: The proposed budget will be available for review.

Review and Approved by Legal: N/A

Attachments:
N/A

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0472 Name: Lick Creek Raw Influent Pumps

Status:Type: Contract Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/26/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a construction contract 16300497
with Hahn Equipment Company in the amount of $149,049 for the replacement of the Lick Creek Raw
Lift Pumps and Variable Frequency Drives.

Sponsors: David Coleman

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: ITB 16-085 tabulation - ITB 16-085 Tabulation

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a construction contract 16300497
with Hahn Equipment Company in the amount of $149,049 for the replacement of the Lick Creek
Raw Lift Pumps and Variable Frequency Drives.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:
Core Services and Infrastructure

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval

Summary: The Lick Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Raw Lift Pumps, along with their associated
Variable Frequency Drives, pump the raw sewage from the wastewater collection system into the
treatment plant.  The existing pumps have exceeded their service life and become unreliable.
Additionally the VFDs are obsolete and repair parts are no longer available.  These pumps and their
drives need to be replaced to ensure continuous and reliable treatment of the wastewater generated
in the southern part of College Station.

The pumps and their drives must be compatible and fit the existing facilities and have similar
performance characteristics to the existing pumps. Invitation to Bid #16085 requested quotes for a
vendor to provide and install the pumps and drives.  Four vendors attended the mandatory pre bid
meeting and expressed interest.  However, only two bids were received, with Hahn Equipment being
the low responsible, responsive bidder.  Hahn Equipment has provided excellent service with their
equipment and we have had excellent service from equipment provided by Hahn, therefore staff
recommends this contract be approved.

Budget & Financial Summary: Budget for this replacement is included in the Wastewater Capital
Improvement Projects Fund.
Legal Review: Yes.

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4607641&GUID=8075C4B0-1D1C-4947-8955-597067FD16DD


File #: 16-0472, Version: 1

Attachment:
Bid Tab
Contract (available in City Secretary’s Office)

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City of College Station - Purchasing Division
Bid Tabulation for #16-085

"Lick Creek Raw Lift Pumps Project"
Open Date:  Monday, July 18, 2016 @ 2:00 p.m.

Page 1 of 1

ITEM QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE
TOTAL 
PRICE UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 
PRICE

BASE BID

1 1 LS

Furnish material and labor to replace the existing solids-handling 
influent submersible pumps and the VFD’s that control the pumps.  
Location is the Lick Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant, 14802 
Rock Prairie Rd., College Station, TX  77845.  $161,964.00 $161,964.00 $149,049.00 $149,049.00

Alsay Incorporated           
(Houston, Texas)

Hahn Equipment Co., Inc.       
(Houston, Texas)

BASE BID - TOTAL

Addendum Acknowledged Y Y

$149,049.00$161,964.00

NOTES:

Bid Bond Y Y

Bid Certification Y Y



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0475 Name: CVB FY16 Amendment #1

Status:Type: Presentation Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/27/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to the funding agreement between
the City of College Station and the Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) for FY16.
The amendment will allow for reimbursement costs in the amount of $30,000 related to the acquisition
of a site for a visitor information center according to Tax Code Section 351.101(a) (1). The original
agreement allowed for reimbursement of legal and architect fees associated with a new joint facility
with the Arts Council of the Brazos Valley (also in the amount of $30,000).

Sponsors: Jeff Kersten

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: CVB 2016 Amend #1-Shannon signed

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to the funding
agreement between the City of College Station and the Brazos Valley Convention and
Visitors Bureau (CVB) for FY16. The amendment will allow for reimbursement costs in
the amount of $30,000 related to the acquisition of a site for a visitor information center
according to Tax Code Section 351.101(a) (1). The original agreement allowed for
reimbursement of legal and architect fees associated with a new joint facility with the
Arts Council of the Brazos Valley (also in the amount of $30,000).

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of amendment #1 to the FY16
funding agreement.

Summary: As part of the 2015-2016 budget process the City Council approved funding
for the Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau in the amount of $1,727,855. This
includes
$1,697,855 for marketing and operational activities directly associated with the
promotion of tourism and the hotel industry in College Station by the CVB. Also included
was a total of
$30,000 for reimbursement of legal and architect fees associated with a new joint
facility with the Arts Council of the Brazos Valley. CVB and Arts Council are now
pursuing separate facilities and this amendment changes applicable the language in the
funding agreement.

Budget & Financial Summary: The funds for this agreement are budgeted and
available in the 2015-2016 Hotel Tax Fund budget. This amendment does not change

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4611586&GUID=F8DD4287-03DC-46F6-A657-DD944CC15395


File #: 16-0475, Version: 1

the total amount
approved for the CVB as part of the original funding agreement.

Attachments:
1. CVB Funding Agreement Amendment #1 (available in City Secretary’s Office)

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™





City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0477 Name: Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Williams Creek
Lake Estates

Status:Type: Comprehensive Plan Agenda Ready

File created: In control:7/27/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an ordinance amending the
Comprehensive Plan - Future Land Use & Character Map from Estate and Suburban Commercial to
Restricted Suburban for approximately 16 acres located 8607 Rock Prairie Road, generally located
north of Rock Prairie Road and west of William D. Fitch Parkway.

Sponsors: Jenifer Paz

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Background Information

Aerial

Amendment Map

0 comp plan 8607 RPR 3 FINAL

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an ordinance amending the
Comprehensive Plan - Future Land Use & Character Map from Estate and Suburban Commercial to
Restricted Suburban for approximately 16 acres located 8607 Rock Prairie Road, generally located
north of Rock Prairie Road and west of William D. Fitch Parkway.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Good Governance

· Neighborhood Integrity

· Diverse Growing Economy

Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item on July 21, 2016
and voted 5-0 to recommend approval.

Summary:

REVIEW CRITERIA
1. Changed or changing conditions in the subject area or the City: The subject property is

located just south of College Station’s City limit boundary in an area annexed within the last 14
years. In 2014, the Williams Creek Lake Estates portion of subject property was rezoned from R
Rural to E Estate. The property was partially included in the approved Preliminary Plan for William
Creek Lake Estate, a low-density, cluster residential development. Due to the rural character and
limited services provided to the area there have not been any proposed changes recommended

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4608029&GUID=8625B808-3D28-407C-9566-C944B43BA7A5
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4608030&GUID=2E0ACE12-2283-4368-AD6A-FD64FAA4818D
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4608031&GUID=5D0DB76B-CF62-4E50-BD1C-DF750FA43A10
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4608032&GUID=3CF50D96-4CC1-4592-86C4-13A269555F72


File #: 16-0477, Version: 1

thus far. Since the Comprehensive Plan, the Medical District Plan refined land uses further down
on the west side of Rock Prairie Road and along State Highway 6 South. Outside the vicinity west
of Rock Prairie Road and William D. Fitch Parkway, the only amendment near the subject area is
west along Rock Prairie Road from Estate to Restricted Suburban and Suburban Commercial
near the intersection of Bird Pond Road and Rock Prairie. The remainder of the area north of
Rock Prairie is rural in character.

2. Scope of the request: The request is to amend the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use
and Character Map designation for approximately 16 acres from Estate and Suburban
Commercial to Restricted Suburban.  This amendment will allow for a future residential
subdivision with medium density single-family housing (minimum 6,500 square-foot lots; average
10,000 square-feet or 8,000 square feet when clustered) along an existing rural section road
proposed as a future 4-lane Minor Arterial, in an area with a prevailing rural character. The
proposed land use designation is more intense than the current surrounding land use and the
proposed land uses for the area. Under the existing Estate land use designation, future residential
development would be characterized as low density with homes dispersed in minimum one acre
lots. This would allow a gross density of one unit per acre as opposed to the requested change to
Restricted Suburban which would allow a gross density of four units per acre, effectively
increasing the density in an area that is anticipated to be largely rural or low density residential.

3. Availability of adequate information: A Restricted Suburban designation allows for future
development of a medium-density single-family residential subdivision. The subject property is
within the College Station water CCN along Rock Prairie Road (approximately 250 feet depth)
and transitions to the Wellborn Special Utility District CCN. Wellborn Special Utility District has
indicated an ability to serve domestic water service to the proposed subdivision within their CCN,
but additional infrastructure improvements will be needed with further site development to meet
minimum fire flow requirements. Properties within College Station’s CCN will be served by a water
main across Rock Prairie Road.

This property is located within the City of College Station’s sewer CCN. There is an existing lift
station and 12-inch sewer main along William D. Fitch. This main and lift station currently has the
capacity to serve the proposed development.

There are existing Police Department Service concerns for this area. Additional density will likely
further diminish the Police Department’s effectiveness and reduce service levels. Additional staff
may be needed as growth occurs in this area.

4. Consistency with the goals and strategies set forth in the Plan: The goal for College
Station’s Future Land Use and Character is to create a community with strong, unique
neighborhoods, protected rural areas, special districts, distinct corridors, and a protected and
enhanced natural environment.

The subject property and surrounding area to the north and west are identified in the
Comprehensive Plan as part of Growth Area III. Due to the service limitations and prevailing rural
character, the Growth Area suggests that it remain rural in character and be developed at a low
intensity.

The proposed amendment essentially creates a bubble of medium-density single-family housing
that is much higher than the current and expected density and character of the area.  Further

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 16-0477, Version: 1

amendments in this area are discouraged due to a limited future street network and utility
constraints in this area as well as to retain the prevailing rural character.

5. Consideration of the Future Land Use & Character and/or Thoroughfare Plans: The
existing Future Land Use and Character designation on the property is Estate and Suburban
Commercial. Estate is a designation for areas that should have a low level of development
activities. This land use is typically characterized by large single-family lots acting as a transitional
use between medium density Restricted Suburban and low density Rural lands uses.

Generally, land to the north of Rock Prairie Road is planned for agricultural and lower intensity
residential uses. Due to the location of the property, being at the edge of the city limits, near
Carter’s Creek and the existing rural residential development in the area, there is little
thoroughfare infrastructure planned in this area, limiting overall thoroughfare capacity.

The applicant has requested an amendment to Restricted Suburban. Restricted Suburban is a
designation for areas that should have a medium-density single-family development with
minimum 6,500 square foot lots that overall average of 10,000 square feet or 8,000 when
clustered around open space. The adjacent properties are designated Estate and Natural Areas
Protected and properties to the south across Rock Prairie Road is designated as Institutional. The
property is located along an existing rural section street that is reflective of the existing character
and thoroughfare capacity of the area.

Rock Prairie Road is designated as a 4-lane Minor Arterial on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan Map
and is proposed to maintain its current alignment. The roadway is currently built to a 2-lane rural
section.

6. Compatibility with the surrounding area: The adjacent land uses are large lot single-
family and rural tracts varying in sizes from 2 to 70 acres (overall future density of 0.33 to 1
dwelling units per acre) and planned neighborhood commercial on the corner of William D. Fitch
and Rock Prairie Road. This property is partially included in the approved Preliminary Plan for
Williams Creek Lake Estate which is a large lot single-family cluster development with an overall
density of 1 unit per acre. The property to the south of Rock Prairie Road is College Station ISD
Transportation Center and the former landfill. The majority of the area east of Rock Prairie is
unplatted with the exception of Williams Creek Subdivision, located along Rock Prairie and across
William D. Fitch Parkway, a seventy-acre Estate-density subdivision. A Restricted Suburban
development will provide different character than these existing developments east of Rock
Prairie Road.

7. Impacts on infrastructure including water, wastewater, drainage, and the
transportation network: Water service will be served by Wellborn SUD and City of College
Station. The City of College Station’s CCN is along the front of Rock Prairie Road. On the
subject’s tract, the City of College Station’s CCN ends and transitions to Wellborn SUD.

Subject tract is proposing to sewer the subject tract through Williams Creek Lake Subdivision that
ultimately drains towards the existing lift station on William D. Fitch.  Public infrastructure will be
required to be designed and constructed in accordance with the B/CS Unified Design
Guidelines. Existing Infrastructure appears to currently have capacity to adequately serve the
proposed use.

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 16-0477, Version: 1

The site is in the Lick Creek drainage basin and generally drains towards Rock Prairie Road.
With site development, detention will be required. Drainage improvements are required to be
designed and constructed in accordance with the B/CS Unified Stormwater Design Guidelines,
and site development impacts on the drainage system will be evaluated further at that time.

The subject tract would have access to Rock Prairie Road which is designated as a 4-lane Minor
Arterial on the Thoroughfare Plan.

8. Impact on the City’s ability to provide, fund, and maintain services: The subject
property and surrounding area are not within the Fire Department’s desired 4.5 minute response
time, a performance indicator that can have bearing on the City’s ISO rating.

Existing Police service is a concern in this area. Additional density will likely further diminish the
Police Department’s effectiveness and reduce service levels.

9. Impact on environmentally sensitive and natural areas: This area is not recognized as
environmentally sensitive.

10. Contribution to the overall direction and character of the community as captured in
the Plan’s vision and goals: The goal for College Station’s Future Land Use and Character is to
create a community with strong, unique neighborhoods, protected rural areas, special districts,
distinct corridors, and a protected and enhanced natural environment. The proposed amendment
from Estate and Suburban Commercial to Restricted Suburban on just 16 acres does limit the
general goals of the Comprehensive Plan. The amendment is proposing a density and level of
service to an area that currently does not have the capacity for given the current conditions.

Additionally, a proposal to increase density in this area was considered by the City Council last
December as part of the Comprehensive Plan 5-year update. Given the prevailing rural character
north of Rock Prairie Road and the limited infrastructure (specifically water, sewer, and
thoroughfares), the City Council decided not to increase the density. Conditions in this area have
not changed since that time.

Budget & Financial Summary: N/A

Attachments:
1. Background Information
2. Aerial
3. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Map
4. Ordinance

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



NOTIFICATIONS 
Advertised Commission Hearing Date: July 21, 2016 

Advertised Council Hearing Dates:  August 11, 2016 

 
The following neighborhood organizations that are registered with the City of College Station’s 
Neighborhood Services have received a courtesy letter of notification of this public hearing:  

N/A 
 

Contacts in support: Two   

Contacts in opposition: None at the time of the staff report  

Inquiry contacts: None at the time of the staff report 
 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES 

Direction Comprehensive Plan Zoning Land Use 
North Estate Estate Vacant 

South (across Rock 
Prairie Road) 

Institutional/Public R Rural 
Brazos Valley Solid 
Waste & CSISD Bus 

Farm 
East Suburban Commercial R Rural Vacant 
West Estate R Rural Vacant 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT HISTORY 

Annexation:  1983 & 2002 

Zoning:    E Estate and R Rural  

Final Plat:  Unplatted; Property is a part of a single family Preliminary Plan, 
Williams Creek Lake Estate, approved earlier this year. 

Site development:  Vacant  
 
 
PROPOSAL  
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the Estate and Suburban Commercial to Restricted 
Suburban designation on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use and Character Map as a step 
toward platting more dense single-family residential subdivision for approximately 16 acres 
located north of Rock Prairie Road and west of William D. Fitch. The subject property and 
properties to the north and east are primarily designated Estate on the Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use and Character Map.   
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  



 



Comp plan 8607 RPR 2 

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, AMENDING THE COLLEGE 

STATION COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 

LAND USE AND CHARACTER MAP FROM ESTATE AND SUBURBAN COMMERCIAL TO 

RESTRICTED SUBURBAN FOR APPROXIMATELY 16 ACRES LOCATED AT 8607 ROCK 

PRAIRIE ROAD, GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF ROCK PRAIRIE ROAD AND WEST OF 

WILLIAM D. FITCH PARKWAY, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE; AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

 

PART 1: That the “Comprehensive Plan of the City of College Station” is hereby amended 

by adding a new Subsection C.2.o of Exhibit “A” thereto as set out in Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto and made a part hereof; and by amending the “Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use and Character Map,” as set out in Exhibit “B” attached hereto for 

the identified area and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 

PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this Ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 

provisions or sections of this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 

punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 

Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be 

permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being 

a penal ordinance, becomes effective not less than ten (10) days after its date of 

passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City 

of College Station. 
 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 11th day of August, 2016. 

 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Secretary     Mayor 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 

  



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 of 7 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

That ordinance no. 3186 adopting the “Comprehensive Plan of the City of College Station” as amended, 

is hereby amended by adding a new Subsection C.2.o to Exhibit “A” of said plan for Exhibit “A” to read 

in its entirety as follows: 

 

“EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

 

A. Comprehensive Plan 

The College Station Comprehensive Plan (Ordinance 3186) is hereby adopted and consists of the 

following: 

1. Existing Conditions; 

2. Introduction; 

3. Community Character; 

4. Neighborhood Integrity; 

5. Economic Development;  

6. Parks, Greenways & the Arts; 

7. Transportation; 

8. Municipal Services & Community Facilities;  

9. Growth Management and Capacity; and 

10. Implementation and Administration. 

 

B. Master Plans   

The following Master Plans are hereby adopted and made a part of the College Station 

Comprehensive Plan: 

1. The Northgate Redevelopment Plan dated November 1996; 

2. The Revised Wolf Pen Creek Master Plan dated 1998; 

3. Northgate Redevelopment Implementation Plan dated July 2003; 

4. East College Station Transportation Study dated May 2005; 

5. Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan dated May 2005; 

6. Park Land Dedication Neighborhood Park Zones Map dated January 2009;  

7. Park Land Dedication Community Park Zones map dated April 2009; 

8. Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Greenways Master Plan dated January 2010;  

9. Central College Station Neighborhood Plan dated June 2010;  

10. Water System Master Plan dated August 2010; 

11. Wastewater Master Plan dated June 2011;  

12. Eastgate Neighborhood Plan dated June 2011;  

13. Recreation, Park and Open Space Master Plan dated July 2011; 

14. Southside Area Neighborhood Plan dated August 2012; 

15. Medical District Master Plan dated October 2012;  

16. Wellborn Community Plan dated April 2013;  

17. Economic Development Master Plan dated September 2013; and 



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 3 of 7 

 
18. South Knoll Area Neighborhood Plan dated September 2013. 

 

C. Miscellaneous Amendments 

The following miscellaneous amendments to the College Station Comprehensive Plan are as 

follows: 

1. Text Amendments: 

a. Chapter 2 “Community Character,” “Growth Areas” by amending the text regarding 

Growth Area IV and Growth Area V – Ordinance 3376, dated October 2011. 

b. Chapter 6 “Transportation” by amending the text regarding Complete Streets, Context 

Sensitive Solutions, Minimum Length and Additional Right-of-Way for Turn Lanes at 

Intersections, and Right-of-Way for Utilities – Ordinance 3729, dated December 10, 

2015. 

c. Chapter 2 “Community Character,” Chapter 3 “Neighborhood Integrity,” Chapter 4 

“Economic Development,” Chapter 5 “Parks, Greenways, and the Arts,” and Chapter 

7 “Municipal Services and Community Facilities” by amending the text based on the 

recommendation of the Comprehensive Plan Five-Year Evaluation & Appraisal Report 

– Ordinance 3730 dated December 10, 2015.  

d. Chapter 8 “Growth Management & Capacity” by amending the text based on 

recommendations from the Annexation Task Force – Ordinance 3766, dated April 28, 

2016. 

2. Future Land Use and Character Map Amendment: 

a. 301 Southwest Parkway – Ordinance 3255, dated July 2010. 

b. Richards Subdivision – Ordinance 3376, dated October 2011. 

c. 1600 University Drive East – Ordinance 3535, dated November 14, 2013. 

d. 2560 Earl Rudder Freeway S. – Ordinance 3541, dated December 12, 2013. 

e. 13913 FM 2154. – Ordinance 3546, dated January 9, 2014. 

f. 2021 Harvey Mitchell Parkway – Ordinance 3549, dated January 23, 2014. 

g. 1201 Norton Lane – Ordinance 3555, dated February 27, 2014. 

h. 3715 Rock Prairie Road West – Ordinance 3596, dated August 25, 2014. 

i. 4201 Rock Prairie Road – Ordinance 3670, dated July 9, 2015. 

j. The approximately 40 acres of land generally located east of FM 2154 (aka Wellborn 

Road), south of the Southern Trace Subdivision, west of State Highway 40 (aka 

William D. Fitch Parkway), and north of Westminster Subdivision – Ordinance 3731, 

dated December 10, 2015. 

k. The approximately 120 acres of land generally located south of Barron Cut-Off Road, 

west of WS Phillips Parkway, north of the Castlegate II Subdivision, and east of the 

Wellborn Community –  Ordinance 3732, dated December 10, 2015. 

l. The approximately 900 acres of land generally located south of Greens Prairie Road 

West, east of the Sweetwater Subdivision, and north of Arrington Road – Ordinance 

3733,  dated December 10, 2015. 



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 4 of 7 

 
m. The approximately 17.788 acres of land generally located at the corner  of  Turkey  

Creek  Road  and  Raymond  Stotzer  Parkway frontage road.– Ordinance 3752, dated 

March 10, 2016. 

n. The approximately 9 acres of land generally located north of the Crossroad Woods 

Subdivision near the intersection of Wellborn Road (FM 2154) and Greens Prairie Trail 

–Ordinance 3779, dated June 9, 2016 

o. The approximately 16 acres of land located at 8607 Rock Prairie Road, generally 

located north of Rock Prairie Road and west of William D. Fitch Parkway – by this 

Ordinance dated August 11, 2016. 

 

3. Concept Map Amendment: 

a. Growth Area IV – Ordinance 3376, dated October 2011. 

b. Growth Area V – Ordinance 3376, dated October 2011. 

4. Thoroughfare Map Amendment: 

a. Raintree Drive – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

b. Birkdale Drive – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

c. Corsair Circle – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

d. Deacon Drive – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

e. Dartmouth Drive – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

f. Farm to Market 60 – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

g. Southwest Parkway – Ordinance 3375, dated October 2011. 

h. Cain Road extension –Ordinance 3639, dated February 26, 2015. 

i. Update to Chapter 6 Maps- Ordinance 3729, dated December 10, 2015. 

5. Bicycle, Pedestrian and Greenways Master Plan Amendment: 

a. Cain Road extension – Ordinance 3639, dated February 26, 2015 

b. Update to Maps 5.4 and 5.5- Ordinance 3729, dated December 10, 2015. 

 

D. General 

1. Conflict.  All parts of the College Station Comprehensive Plan and any amendments thereto 

shall be harmonized where possible to give effect to all. Only in the event of an irreconcilable 

conflict shall the later adopted ordinance prevail and then only to the extent necessary to avoid 

such conflict.  Ordinances adopted at the same city council meeting without reference to 

another such ordinance shall be harmonized, if possible, so that effect may be given to each. 

2. Purpose.  The Comprehensive Plan is to be used as a guide for growth and development for the 

entire City and its extra-territorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”).  The College Station Comprehensive 

Plan depicts generalized locations of proposed future land-uses, including thoroughfares, 

bikeways, pedestrian ways, parks, greenways, and waterlines that are subject to modification 

by the City to fit local conditions and budget constraints. 

3. General nature of Future Land Use and Character.  The College Station Comprehensive Plan, 

in particular the Future Land Use and Character Map found in A.3  above and any adopted 

amendments thereto, shall not be nor considered a zoning map, shall not constitute zoning 



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 5 of 7 

 
regulations or establish zoning boundaries and shall not be site or parcel specific but shall be 

used to illustrate generalized locations. 

4. General nature of College Station Comprehensive Plan.  The College Station Comprehensive 

Plan, including the Thoroughfare Plan, Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Greenways Master Plan, 

Central College Station Neighborhood Plan, Water System Master Plan and any additions, 

amendments, master plans and subcategories thereto depict same in generalized terms 

including future locations; and are subject to modifications by the City to fit local conditions, 

budget constraints, cost participation, and right-of-way availability that warrant further 

refinement as development occurs.  Linear routes such as bikeways, greenways, thoroughfares, 

pedestrian ways, waterlines and sewer lines that are a part of the College Station 

Comprehensive Plan may be relocated by the City 1,000 feet from the locations shown in the 

Plan without being considered an amendment thereto. 

5. Reference.  The term College Station Comprehensive Plan includes all of the above in its 

entirety as if presented in full herein, and as same may from time to time be amended.” 

 

  



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 6 of 7 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

  

 

That the “Comprehensive Plan of the City of College Station” is hereby amended by amending a portion 

of the map titled “Map 2.2-Future Land Use & Character” of Chapter 2 – Community Character” from 

Estate and Suburban Commercial to Restricted Suburban shown as follows: 

  

Existing Future Land Use & Character Map 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  

Urban 



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 7 of 7 

 
Proposed Future Land Use & Character Map 

 

 



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0478 Name: Right-of-Way Abandonment – 600 First Street

Status:Type: Ordinance Agenda Ready

File created: In control:7/27/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion approving an ordinance vacating and
abandoning a 0.149-acre portion of the right-of-way located at 600 First Street, being part of the W.C.
Boyett Estate Partition Map recorded in Volume 100, Page 440 of the Deed Records of Brazos
County, Texas.

Sponsors: Carol Cotter

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Vicinity Map

Location Map

Ordinance

Exhibit A

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion approving an ordinance vacating and
abandoning a 0.149-acre portion of the right-of-way located at 600 First Street, being part of the W.C.
Boyett Estate Partition Map recorded in Volume 100, Page 440 of the Deed Records of Brazos
County, Texas.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Good Governance

· Core Services and Infrastructure

· Diverse Growing Economy

Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the ordinance.

Summary:

This right-of-way abandonment will help accommodate redevelopment in the Northgate area in
accordance with the proposed site plan.  The City will retain a temporary blanket easement for the
entire right-of-way which will continue to provide sufficient access to public and private utilities until
infrastructure is removed and/or relocated at the owners’ expense and a new public utility easement
is granted as needed with the future site development.

The variable width portion of the right-of-way (see Exhibit “A”) is 0.149 of one acre situated in the J.E.
Scott Survey, Abstract No.50, Brazos County, Texas, and being a part of the existing right-of-way of
First Street out of the W.C. Boyett Estate Partition Map according to the plat of record in Volume 100,

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604669&GUID=075ABB51-622A-4492-9E7E-51108CFA72D8
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604670&GUID=A71B32CA-4BE7-4D99-BD4F-BBFF1EB67DE6
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604671&GUID=14DCA51D-9B2F-44CF-A76D-83FA6BBE9456
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604672&GUID=26DBF605-FCF7-4CD6-A931-95A367698660


File #: 16-0478, Version: 1

Page 440 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas.

Budget & Financial Summary: N/A

Attachments:

1. Vicinity Map
2. Location Map
3. Ordinance
4. Exhibit "A"

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Proposed 0.149-Ac.
ROW Abandonment

GAYTHA CR

ORAN CR

SECOND ST

SP
RU

CE
 ST

BOYETT ST

COLLEGE MAIN ST

WELLBORN RD

LO
UISE AV

MAPLE AV

FIRST ST

NATA
LIE

 ST CH
ER

RY
 ST

0 0.03 0.060.015
Miles

¯

Note: The accuracy of this data is limited to the validity and accuracy of available data, and therefor the city makes no representation or warranties as to the accuracy of the data. Any party using the data does so at their own risk. This data is produced pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act. For specific questions
 regarding this map contact Planning and Development Services.

BCAD Parcels
City Limit
ETJ 

VICINITY MAP



!

!

!

!

!

!

!(

!(

!(

!(

!

!

!

!!2

!!2

!!2

Proposed 0.149-Ac.
ROW Abandonment

BOYETT ST

FIRST ST

NATA
LIE

 ST

WELLBORN RD

SPRUCE ST

N34A2M009

N34A2M068

N34A2M059

AV-022

AV-020

AV-190

AV-019

0 0.01 0.020.005
Miles

¯LOCATION MAP



 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  _________________ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE MAKING CERTAIN AFFIRMATIVE FINDINGS AND 

VACATING AND ABANDONING A 0.149 ACRE PORTION OF FIRST STREET 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED AT 600 FIRST STREET, RECORDED IN VOLUME 

100, PAGE 440 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, has received an application for the 

vacation and abandonment of a 0.149-acre portion of the First Street variable width right-

of-way, which is located at 600 First Street, situated in the J.E. Scott Survey, Abstract 

No. 50, Brazos County, Texas, and being a part of the existing right-of-way of First 

Street out of the W.C. Boyett Estate Partition Map according to the plat of record in 

Volume 100, Page 440 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas as described in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto (such portions collectively hereinafter referred to as the 

“Right-of-Way”); and 

 

WHEREAS, in order for the Right-of-Way to be vacated and abandoned by the City 

Council of the City of College Station, Texas, the City Council must make certain 

affirmative findings; now therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 

STATION, TEXAS:  

 

PART 1: That after opening and closing a public hearing, the City Council finds the 

following pertaining to the vacating and abandoning of the Right-of-Way 

in the manner and as described in Ordinance Exhibit "A" attached hereto 

and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 

1. Abandonment of the Right-of-Way will not result in property that does 

not have access to public roadways or utilities; 

 

2. Other than as set forth herein, there is no public need or use for the 

Right-of-Way; 

 

3. Except as may be provided for in this ordinance, there is no anticipated 

future public need or use for the Right-of-Way; 

 

4. As set forth in this ordinance, abandonment of the Right-of-Way will 

not impact access for all public utilities to serve current and future 

customers; 

 

 

 



Ordinance No. _______  Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

5. Utility infrastructure exists within the Right-of-Way and the City has a 

continuing need for currently existing public utilities to remain within 

the Right-of-Way, and said uses are expressly not abandoned herein; 

and 

 

6. The Right-of-Way is hereby abandoned as a public roadway and is no 

longer thrown open to the general public but is only for the public 

purposes recited herein and is in all other respects hereby abandoned. 

 

 

PART 2: That the 0.149-acre Right-of-Way known as First Street and as described 

in Exhibit “A” be abandoned and vacated by the City for roadway 

purposes; provided, however, that the City shall retain a temporary blanket 

public utility easement on the area to be abandoned as set forth above, and 

the City does not abandon such uses. 

 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _________________, 2016. 

 

 

      APPROVED: 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

______________________________ 

City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

City Attorney 

 



Ordinance No. _______  Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A”  



ebridges
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text

ebridges
Typewritten Text



ebridges
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0479 Name: Traffic Impact Analyses for Single-Family
Development

Status:Type: Ordinance Agenda Ready

File created: In control:7/28/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an ordinance amending
Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance”, Article 3 “Development Review Procedures”, Section
12-3.4.C "Application Requirements" and Article 7 “General Development Standards”, Section 12-7.13
“Traffic Impact Analysis”, regarding Traffic Impact Analyses for single-family development.

Sponsors: Danielle Singh

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Redlined Applicable UDO Sections

Ordinance 12-7.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an ordinance amending
Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance”, Article 3 “Development Review Procedures”, Section
12-3.4.C "Application Requirements" and Article 7 “General Development Standards”, Section 12-
7.13 “Traffic Impact Analysis”, regarding Traffic Impact Analyses for single-family development.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Good Governance

· Core Services and Infrastructure

· Neighborhood Integrity

· Diverse Growing Economy

· Improving Mobility

Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission will consider this item at their August 4,
2016 meeting. Their recommendation will be provided at the City Council meeting. Staff recommends
approval.

Summary: The proposed amendment removes the single-family residential development exemption
from the current Traffic Impact Analysis requirements by requiring a Traffic Impact Analysis to be
included with a preliminary plan application where applicable. The current ordinance requires a
Traffic Impact Analysis to be submitted with zoning and/or site plan applications. Since site plans are
not submitted for single-family residential developments, the ordinance amendment also includes a
Traffic Impact Analysis requirement with preliminary plan applications.

“Traffic Impact Analysis” is the section of the General Development Standards that requires any
development generating 150 or more vehicle trips in any peak hour to provide a Traffic Impact

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4611707&GUID=035261FA-F6F6-4D98-A574-B308654A7AA9
http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4611708&GUID=7F61FAEF-38BE-40D8-A468-F285F3833D24


File #: 16-0479, Version: 1

development generating 150 or more vehicle trips in any peak hour to provide a Traffic Impact
Analysis to determine the impacts to the transportation system and propose mitigation for any
facilities falling below an acceptable level of service. The ordinance was originally adopted in 2008.
The original ordinance provided an exemption for Northgate zoning districts and single-family zoning
districts. In 2009, the Comprehensive Plan was adopted which called for the requirement for Traffic
Impact Analysis to be extended to single family developments. As part of the Five-Year
Comprehensive Plan Evaluation & Appraisal Report, the recommendation was made to require
Traffic Impact Analysis for single family residential development.

Staff hosted two public meetings in March to discuss proposed changes and to solicit input. Staff
received several comments and questions regarding the proposed changes and presented the
comments to the Council Transportation and Mobility Committee for guidance on developing the
ordinance amendment.

Budget & Financial Summary: N/A
Legal Review:  Yes

Attachments:

1. Redlined Applicable UDO Sections
2. Ordinance

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



 

 

  Page 1 

Sec. 12-3.4. - Plat Review.  

C. Application Requirements.  

1. Preapplication Conference.  

Prior to the submission of a preliminary plan or a plat application required by this UDO, applicants 
are encouraged to schedule and attend an optional preapplication conference in accordance with 
and for the purposes set forth elsewhere in this UDO for preapplication conferences.  

2. A complete application for review shall be submitted to the Administrator including payment of a 
fee as set forth in this UDO. Upon request, all preliminary plans and all plats shall be submitted 
in an electronic form acceptable to the Administrator and compatible with the City's Geographic 
Information System (GIS). The signatures of all owners of land within the boundary of the 
preliminary plan or the plat shall be required on the application. A representative of an owner may 
sign the application provided a written letter of agency is provided to the City with the application. 
If the property owner is not an individual but an entity (e.g., business or trust), the application 
must be accompanied by proof of authority for the individual to sign on behalf of the entity.  

3. When required to submit the following, the applications shall comply with and/or show the 
following information:  

a. Preliminary Plans.  

When submitting preliminary plans, the following information is required:  

1) The preliminary plan shall conform to the general requirements of this UDO and 
minimum standards of design and improvements as set forth in Chapter 12, Article 8 
Subdivision Design and Improvements;  

2) Provide the preliminary plan on sheets twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches 
to a scale of one hundred (100) feet per inch or larger. Smaller scales may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Administrator. If more than one (1) sheet, provide an index sheet 
at a scale of five hundred (500) feet per inch or larger;  

3) The words "PRELIMINARY PLAN - NOT FOR RECORD" shall appear on the plan in 
letters one-half (½) inch high;  

4) The date the preliminary plan was submitted and the dates of any revisions shall legibly 
appear on the plan;  

5) The proposed name of the subdivision or development, which shall not have the same 
spelling as or be pronounced similar to the name of any other subdivision located within 
the county it is located;  

6) The name and address of all property owners, developers and subdividers, engineers, 
and surveyors;  

7) The legal description by metes and bounds of the subdivision or development which 
shall close within accepted land survey standards. An accurate location of the 
subdivision or development shall be provided by reference to an established survey or 
league corner, City of College Station horizontal control monument, subdivision corner, 
or other known point. Primary control points or descriptions and ties to such control 
point, to which, later, all dimensions, angles, bearings, block numbers, and similar data 
shall be referred. The preliminary plan shall be located with respect to a corner of the 
survey or tract, or an original corner of the original survey of which it is a part;  

8) Subdivision boundary lines shall be indicated by heavy lines and the computed acreage 
of the subdivision or development shown;  

9) The name of contiguous subdivisions and names of owners of contiguous parcels, and 
an indication whether or not contiguous properties are platted;  



 

 

  Page 2 

10) The following existing features shall be shown: 

(a) The location, dimension, name and description of all recorded streets, alleys, 
reservations, easements, or other public or private rights-of-way within the 
subdivision or development, intersecting or contiguous with its boundaries or 
forming such boundaries. In the case of pipelines carrying flammable gas or fuel, 
the approximate location, size of line, design pressure and product transported 
through the line shall be shown;  

(b) The location, dimension, description and name of all existing or recorded lots, 
parks, public areas, permanent structures and other sites within or contiguous with 
the subdivision or development;  

(c) The location, dimensions, description, and flow line of existing watercourses and 
drainage structures within the subdivision, development or contiguous thereto;  

(d) The location of the one hundred-year floodplain according to the most recent best 
available data;  

11) Date of preparation, scale in feet, and north arrow; 

12) Topographic information, including contours at two-foot intervals, flow line elevation of 
streams, and wooded areas;  

13) The location, approximate dimensions, description and name of all proposed streets, 
alleys, drainage structures, parks, or other public areas, easements, or other rights-of-
way, blocks, lots, and other sites within the subdivision or development. Proposed 
channel cross sections, if any. Existing and/or proposed well site locations;  

14) A number or letter to identify each lot and each block. Lots and blocks shown on a 
preliminary plan should be numbered sequentially;  

15) Location of current City limits line, and current zoning district boundaries; 

16) Vicinity map which shows general location of subject property to existing streets in 
College Station and to its City limits. No scale is required but a north arrow is to be 
included;  

17) Show number of residential lots and average lot size when applicable; 

18) Provide a note to identify a Cluster Subdivision when applicable; 

19) Provide any oversize participation requests that will be sought; 

20) Provide title report for property that is current within ninety (90) days and includes 
applicable information such as ownership, liens, encumbrances, etc;  

21) Written requests for waivers of subdivision standards, if any, shall be submitted in 
accordance with the applicable Sections of this UDO;  

22) Eleven-inch by seventeen-inch copies of the preliminary plan (not necessarily to scale) 
will be requested by the Administrator when the preliminary plan has been reviewed 
and has the potential to be scheduled for a Planning and Zoning Commission meeting 
for consideration; and  

23) Provide a note on the Preliminary Plan to identify the Residential Parking Option chosen 
from the Single-Family Residential Parking Requirements for Platting when applicable.  

24) As applicable, applicants shall submit the information, documents, and materials set 
forth in the Traffic Impact Analyses Section in Chapter 12, Article 7 of This UDO. 

 

 



 

 

  Page 3 

 

 

 

Sec. 12-7.13. - Traffic Impact Analyses.  

This section establishes requirements and procedures pertaining to traffic impact analyses ("TIAs"). This 
Article is intended to inform the applicant of the City's expectations to ensure safe and adequate access to 
development properties; adequate traffic flow on existing and proposed/planned roadways; and sufficient 
connectivity of the existing and proposed/planned roadway system attributable to their proposal. In addition 
this Article is intended to expedite the City's review of TIA reports, provide standard criteria for evaluating 
proposals, and identify some potential mitigation measures.  

The TIA is intended to form the basis for design of any proposed access/roadway system to ensure 
coordination of the proposed land use with the transportation needs resulting there from. The City of College 
Station and the developer share responsibility to identify and solve transportation issues arising from land 
development.  

College Station requires that TIAs accompany certain zoning applications, and certain site plan 
applications, and certain preliminary plan applications. It is intended that any TIA required for any type of 
land development proposal will complement the overall goal of ensuring that adequate transportation 
facilities are in place to serve land uses by the time those uses are occupied and generating traffic. These 
purposes are further amplified below.  

A. Purpose.  

1. Zoning TIA.  

The goal of a TIA submitted in conjunction with a zoning request is to determine the effect 
that uses allowed within various proposed zones will have on existing and/or any 
proposed/planned roadway systems, and to ensure there is a balance between future land 
uses and future transportation systems. Zoning applications that are required to have a TIA 
are evaluated using both current and long-term traffic and roadway scenarios.  

The TIA will determine whether acceptable levels of service will be maintained for traffic flow 
within the proposed project and in its study area. Where service levels fall below acceptable 
standards, mitigation solutions will be analyzed for their effectiveness. A TIA for a zoning 
request should not recommend mitigation measures that are inconsistent with any traffic or 
roadway provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance or the City's Comprehensive 
Plan, including the Thoroughfare Plan. The Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 
Council shall consider the findings of the TIA in approving or disapproving zoning changes 
to the extent allowed by law.  

2. Preliminary Plan TIA.  

The goal of a TIA submitted in conjunction with a preliminary plan is twofold: to assess the 
adequacy and safety of proposed access to adjacent existing or planned roadways (or 
designs proposed for such access or roadways); and to determine effects the proposed 
project may have on current and future land development and roadway systems in its study 
area. Generally, the TIA uses current and anticipated near-term traffic volumes and roadway 
configurations for the analysis. The process should ensure that the roadway system is, or 
will be, adequate to accommodate the proposed use and that safe and adequate access will 
be provided for travel between the site and the public roadway system.  



 

 

  Page 4 

Where the TIA shows levels of service falling below acceptable minimums on roadway 
systems in its study area the TIA will recommend appropriate mitigation measures and 
demonstrate their effectiveness. Example mitigation techniques may include 
adding/lengthening deceleration/turn lanes, improving driveway access, providing 
connectivity, and modifying traffic control devices. Combinations of these techniques and 
other techniques can be considered. A TIA for a preliminary plan should not recommend 
mitigation measures that are inconsistent with any traffic or roadway provisions of the Unified 
Development Ordinance or the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the Thoroughfare Plan. 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider the findings of the TIA in approving or 
disapproving preliminary plans to the extent allowed by law. 

23. Site Plan TIA.  

The goal of a TIA submitted in conjunction with a site plan is twofold: to assess the adequacy 
and safety of proposed access to adjacent existing or planned roadways (or designs 
proposed for such access or roadways); and to determine effects the site project may have 
on current and future land development and roadway systems in its study area. Generally, 
the TIA uses current and anticipated near-term traffic volumes and roadway configurations 
for the analysis. The process should ensure that the roadway system is, or will be, adequate 
to accommodate the proposed use and that safe and adequate access will be provided for 
travel between the site and the public roadway system.  

Where the TIA shows levels of service falling below acceptable minimums on roadway 
systems in its study area the TIA will recommend appropriate mitigation measures and 
demonstrate their effectiveness. Example mitigation techniques may include 
adding/lengthening deceleration/turn lanes, improving driveway access, providing 
connectivity, and modifying traffic control devices. Combinations of these techniques and 
other techniques can be considered. A TIA for a site plan should not recommend mitigation 
measures that are inconsistent with any traffic or roadway provisions of the Unified 
Development Ordinance or the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the Thoroughfare Plan. 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider the findings of the TIA in approving or 
disapproving site plans to the extent allowed by law.  

 

B. Definitions.  

1. Trip Generation Rates.  

Trip Generation Rates are used to estimate the amount of vehicular traffic generated by 
proposed rezoning or a proposed site plan. For Zoning and Preliminary Plan TIAs, these 
rates are shown by zoning district in the table below.  Preliminary Plan trip generation rates 
should be based on the underlying zoning district. Site plan TIAs shall use rates set forth in 
the latest edition of the Trip Generation Report published by the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers (ITE), unless said Report does not adequately address the type or intensity of the 
proposed land use. In this event the applicant or his agent shall submit projected vehicle 
trips to the Administrator. For land uses adequately represented in said Report, alternate trip 
generation rates shall not be accepted.  

Table 1 

Trip Generation: Residential Land Uses 

Zoning 

Classification  

Maximum 

Units/Acre  

ITE Land 

Use Code  

Trip Rate / 

Unit  

Trip Rate / 

Acre  



 

 

  Page 5 

R 0.33 210 1.00 0.33 

WE 0.5 210 1.00 0.5 

E 1 210 1.00 1 

WRS 2 210 1.00 2 

RS 4 210 1.00 4 

GS 8 210 1.00 8 

D 12 230 0.52 6.24 

T 14 230 0.52 7.28 

MF 30 220 0.62 18.6 

MU Determined by Administrator 

R-4 20.0 220 0.62 12.4 

R-6 30.0 220 0.62 18.6 

MHP Determined by Administrator 

P-MUD Determined by Administrator 

   

Table 2 

Trip Generation: Non-Residential Land Uses 

Zoning 

Classification  

Maximum 

Units/Acre*  

ITE Land 

Use Code  

Trip Rate / 

KSF  

Trip Rate / 

Acre  

O 16,000 sf 710 1.55 25 

SC 11,000 sf 820 3.75 40 



 

 

  Page 6 

WC 11,000 sf 820 3.75 40 

GC 13,500 sf 820 3.75 50 

CI 16,000 sf 710 1.55 25 

BP N/A 130 0.85 8.85 

BPI N/A 770 1.43 19 

CU Determined by Administrator 

PDD Determined by Administrator 

 

*  Density maximum calculated based on existing (2007) developments in the City of College 
Station.  

Table 3 

Trip Generation: Retired Land Uses 

Zoning 

Classification  

Maximum 

Units/Acre*  

ITE Land 

Use Code  

Trip Rate / 

KSF  

Trip Rate / 

Acre  

R-4 20.0 220 0.62 12.4 

R-6 30.0 220 0.62 18.6 

C-3 11,000 sf 820 3.75 40 

R&D N/A 760 N/A 16.8 

M-1 N/A 110 N/A 7.5 

M-2 N/A 120 N/A 2.2 

 

2.    Design Year.    

The design year is the point in time upon which assumptions pertaining to land use, 
population, employment, and transportation facilities are based. All TIAs shall use a design 
year based on the expected date of project occupancy, and shall include consideration of 



 

 

  Page 7 

nearby development that has been approved and will contribute traffic volume to the 
proposed project's study area.  

3. Peak Periods.  

Peak periods relate to times of day experiencing the greatest hourly traffic flow rates. Two 
(2) "peaks" are to be addressed by a TIA: The morning and afternoon peak hours (or 
projected peak hours) of existing (or planned) roadways serving the proposed land 
development. Typically roadway peak periods are between 7:00 and 9:00 a.m. and between 
4:00 and 6:00 p.m.  

4. Base Volumes.  

Base volumes shall be based on current traffic counts adjusted to the expected date of 
project occupancy plus volumes generated by nearby future development (all phases) that 
has been approved by the City. When available, base data will be supplied by the City Traffic 
Engineer. In all cases where traffic counts are needed and are not available, the developer 
or his agent shall be required to collect such data according to guidelines approved by the 
Administrator.  

5. Level of Service (LOS).  

Level of Service is a measure of the extent of congestion experienced on roadways. It is 
measured through analysis of traffic operating conditions on roadway links and at 
intersections, using techniques presented in the latest edition of the Transportation Research 
Board's Highway Capacity Manual.  

C. Applicability.  

1. Zoning TIA.  

Any zoning request, except for certain "redevelopment" areas, requests for R, WE, E, WRS, 
GS, R-1B, D, or T zoning classifications which is expected to generate at least one hundred 
fifty (150) vehicle trips during any peak hour period requires a TIA. Where the 
Comprehensive Plan designates a property as "Redevelopment" a TIA is required if the 
zoning request is expected to generate at least one hundred fifty (150) vehicle trips during 
any peak hour period more than those generated by the currently approved use(s) on the 
property. A zoning request involving multiple zoning districts is required to have a TIA based 
on the total traffic generated for all the proposed districts. A TIA may be required for a zoning 
request that generates less than one hundred fifty (150) trips in the peak hour, where the 
peaking characteristics could have a detrimental impact on the transportation system as 
determined by the Administrator.  

A TIA shall be required unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
Administrator that a TIA is not necessary for the proposed rezoning request. In cases where 
a TIA is required, the rezoning application will be considered incomplete until the TIA is 
submitted 

2. Preliminary Plan TIA.  

Any proposed development requiring preliminary plan approval, which is expected to 
generate at least one hundred fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period requires a TIA. A TIA 
may be required for preliminary plans that generate less than one hundred fifty (150) trips in 
any peak hour period where the peaking characteristics could have a detrimental impact on 
the area's vehicular transportation system as determined by the Administrator.  

A TIA shall be required unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
Administrator that a TIA is not necessary for the proposed project. In cases where a TIA is 
required, the preliminary plan application must be accompanied by the TIA 



 

 

  Page 8 

23. Site Plan TIA.  

Any proposed development requiring site plan approval, excluding developments located in 
the zoning classifications of NG-1, NG-2, or NG-3, which is expected to generate at least 
one hundred fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period requires a TIA. A TIA may be required 
for site plans that generate less than one hundred fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period 
where the peaking characteristics could have a detrimental impact on the area's vehicular 
transportation system as determined by the Administrator.  

A TIA shall be required unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
Administrator that a TIA is not necessary for the proposed site project. In cases where a TIA 
is required, the site plan application must be accompanied by the TIA.  

D. Methodology.  

1. Professional Engineer to perform TIA.  

All required TIAs shall be performed by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Texas 
qualified to perform such analyses. Qualifications may include, but are not limited to, 
certification as a Professional Traffic Operations Engineer or Professional Transportation 
Planner by the Institute of Transportation Engineers or certification by the Texas Department 
of Transportation to conduct traffic engineering studies.  

2. Pre-Submittal Meeting.  

A pre-submission consultation with the Administrator is required at the time of the Pre-
Application Conference to discuss whether a TIA is required and, if so, the relevant aspects 
thereof. The study area will be defined to include nearby land developments (existing or 
approved), the street network to be examined (the "study network"), and the minimum extent 
of analysis. In addition, details of the procedures, assumptions, data collection, and analysis 
methodology(ies) will be determined at this meeting. Traffic from other nearby developments 
that have been approved but not yet constructed will be accounted for in the TIA as 
determined by the Administrator. The Administrator may require other specific assumptions 
such as the percent of trucks to match local conditions. The City may require analyses of 
peak fifteen (15) minute intervals for certain types of land uses that generate major traffic 
surges such as, but not limited to, stadiums, movie theaters, arenas, and schools.  

3. Zoning TIA Content.  

a. Study Area.  

A map(s) will delineate the TIA study area, including land areas to be considered and 
all existing/planned streets therein, and the "study network" (those streets and 
intersections requiring specific analyses). The study area shall be determined based on 
the geographical area most affected by the proposed zoning request as determined by 
the Administrator after conferring with the applicant's traffic engineer.  

b. Existing Zoning.  

A description by zoning classification of the existing zoning in the area proposed for 
rezoning.  

c. Proposed Zoning.  

A description of the proposed zoning including land area by zoning classification.  

d. Roadway Network.  

A description of the existing and proposed/planned roadways of all classifications and 
traffic volumes on the study network within the study area.  



 

 

  Page 9 

e. Impact Determination.  

An assessment of projected traffic volumes is to be made for all study network 
roadways, comparing those with allowable volume limits on roadways classed as 
collector and local, and providing a description of the volume/capacity (V/C) ratio for all 
roadways in the study network. In addition delay projections for signalized and 
unsignalized intersections in the study network will be determined. Where V/C ratios 
and intersection delay are the measures of effectiveness Level of Service D or better 
must be maintained. The analysis shall contain the following minimum information:  

1. Proposed Trip Generation.  

Show in tabular form trip generation rates (see Table 1, 2, or 3 as applicable) and 
the total trips generated based on proposed zoning.  

2. Existing Trip Generation.  

Show in tabular form trip generation rates (see Table 1, 2, or 3 as applicable) and 
the total trips generated based on existing zoning.  

3. Net Increased Trip Distribution and Assignment.  

Show proposed trip generation minus existing trips and the calculation of new trips 
generated. The net increase in trips generated by the zoning request is to be added 
to the base volumes projected by design year. Twenty-four-hour and peak hour 
volumes must be calculated. Distribution and assignment calculations must be 
provided.  

4. Level of Service Analysis.  

Show in tabular form peak hour Level of Service for existing and proposed zoning. 
Calculations shall include all thoroughfare links and intersections. Calculate level 
of service and percentage change (when compared to base volumes) for each link 
and intersection.  

5. Neighborhood Traffic Analysis.  

If a proposed rezoning is projected to increase the traffic on an existing or 
proposed/planned minor collector or local residential roadway (street) at least ten 
(10) percent, a neighborhood traffic analysis shall be performed. This analysis will 
include an evaluation of existing and projected traffic on the affected roadways. 
Where the projected traffic exceeds the limits indicated in the BCS Design 
Guidelines, street network layout must be adjusted to lower this traffic volume.  

6. Conclusions.  

Summarize points of conflict and congestion, identify all thoroughfare links and 
intersections not achieving Level of Service D or better, and the percentage 
change resulting from the proposed zoning change. The results of examining 
collector and local residential roadways, including the findings of any neighborhood 
traffic analysis must also be summarized.  

f. Mitigation.  

A description of the mitigation measures proposed for achieving acceptable service 
thresholds shall be shown. Analysis of the study network as adjusted by the proposed 
measures must be documented. Traffic produced by the proposed zoning request plus 
traffic levels projected by the time of project occupancy should result in Level of Service 
D or better. Locations not meeting Level of Service D where the proposed zoning 
contributes five (5) percent or more of the peak hour traffic must be mitigated by the 



 

 

  Page 10 

applicant. Acceptable methods of mitigating negative traffic impacts include any one 
(1), or a combination of, the measures listed below but is not limited to those listed.  

1) Modifying the zoning request so that resulting traffic volumes yield Level of Service 
D or better throughout the study network.  

2) Modify any street network proposed as part of the development project in terms of 
size, layout, connectivity, intersection layouts, or location of termini with 
thoroughfares, or any combination of such changes.  

3) Limit development densities/intensities within one (1) or more zoning 
classifications or land parcels to result in acceptable traffic volumes.  

4) Making minor thoroughfare or intersection improvements, such as 
adding/extending or relocating turn lanes, adding/extending acceleration and/or 
deceleration lanes, adding non-traversable medians, relocating median openings, 
using special directional median openings, or using special features to facilitate 
safe U-turn maneuvers.  

Amendments to the City's Thoroughfare Plan shall not be accepted as a means of 
mitigating negative impacts, unless the proposed amendment(s) can be shown to 
enhance capacity and safety and will be constructed as part of the proposed land 
development project.  

g. Planning and Zoning Commission Report.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall make a report to the City Council on all 
TIAs it considers in conjunction with requests for rezoning. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission may make a recommendation for approval, modification, or denial of the 
zoning case based on other planning factors in addition to its review of the TIA.  

Where the identified impacts of the proposed zoning cannot be adequately mitigated, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission may recommend to the City Council one (1) or 
more of the following actions:  

1. Denial of the zoning case in total or in part. 

2. Other action(s) deemed appropriate by a study made, or endorsed by, a qualified 
traffic engineer to mitigate negative traffic impacts.  

4. Preliminary Plan TIA Content.  

Submittals of TIAs for preliminary plan projects shall include the following:  

a. Study Area.  

A map(s) delineating the TIA study area, including land areas to be considered and all 
existing/planned roadways therein, and the "study network" (those roadways and 
intersections requiring specific analyses).The study area will be determined by 
identifying the geographical area most affected by the proposed development as 
determined by the Administrator after conferring with the applicant. In general the study 
area will cover all intersections through which at least ten (10) percent of the proposed 
development's site traffic passes, and shall extend to and include at least the first traffic 
signal in all directions if within one (1) mile of any portion of the site. Existing roadway 
and intersection capacities shall be shown.  

b. Existing Zoning.  

A description of existing zoning in the area included in the preliminary plan.   

c. Thoroughfare Network.  



 

 

  Page 11 

A description of existing thoroughfares, signals, signal phasing and traffic volumes 
within the study area;  

d. Proposed Development.  

A description of the proposed development including land area (gross and net), square 
footage, density, dwelling units, etc. Also a description of anticipated roadway 
conditions expected by the date of completion of the proposed development shall be 
included.  

e. Proposed Roadway Network.  

Identification of the proposed roadway network for the preliminary plan. This shall 
include the location of access points, location and number of lanes of proposed 
roadways or public ways, and proposed traffic controls. It must also include any 
proposed modifications to adjacent roadways.  

f. Impact Determination.  

A determination of the Level of Service for all roadways and intersections in the study 
area shall be included, as shall an evaluation of pedestrian, bicycle, and motor vehicle 
safety conditions within the preliminary plan. The analysis shall contain the following 
minimum information:  

1. Proposed Trip Generation.  

A calculation of the total trip generation by use within the study area assuming full 
development and occupancy, including both peak hour and twenty-four-hour 
information show any reductions attributed to passers-by, mixed use, etc. show 
trip generation by use in tabular form with land use trip generation rates and trips 
generated.  

2. Trip Distribution and Assignment.  

A calculation of trips generated by the proposed development as added to the base 
volumes projected for the design year. Peak hour volumes must be calculated. 
Distribution assumptions (and the bases therefore) and assignment calculations 
must be provided.  

3. Level of Service Analysis.  

A depiction shown in tabular form, twenty-four-hour and peak hour 
volume/capacity ratios for links and intersections within the study area. This 
analysis should be done for the following traffic conditions: existing traffic, existing 
traffic plus projected traffic.  

4. Neighborhood Traffic Analysis.  

If the TIA calculations show that a proposed preliminary plan increases traffic on a 
minor collector or local residential roadway (street) by at least ten (10) percent, a 
neighborhood traffic analysis shall be performed. This analysis will include an 
evaluation of existing and projected traffic on the affected roadways. Where the 
projected traffic exceeds the limits indicated in the BCS Design Guidelines 
mitigation to lower this traffic may be required.  

5. Conclusions.  

A summary of findings must be reported. It must show all adjacent roadways and 
intersections noting those that fail to provide Level of Service D or better, and the 
percent increase in total traffic produced by the proposed project. In addition the 



 

 

  Page 12 

report must demonstrate that the proposed roadway network will provide safe and 
adequate access to the development. It also must identify any safety and 
operational problems (e.g., driveways, sight distances, median openings, and 
signalization) within the study area.  

g. Mitigation.  

A description of the mitigation measures proposed for meeting acceptable traffic service 
thresholds shall be shown. Where the development is contributing five (5) percent or 
more of the traffic at locations failing to meet Level of Service D or better the total trips 
should be mitigated by the applicant to low enough levels to achieve the required 
standard (or to pre-development levels, if pre-development level is less than Level of 
Service D). Acceptable measures for mitigating negative traffic impacts include any one 
(1), or a combination of, those listed below.  

1) Modifying the density or intensity of land use, such as a reduction in square footage 
or the percentage of commercial use to result in traffic levels meeting Level of 
Service D or better;  

2) Phasing approval and construction of a project until additional roadway capacity 
becomes available;  

3) Modifying the proposed street network in terms of size, layout, connectivity, 
intersection layouts, or location of termini with thoroughfares or any combination 
of such changes;  

4) Making off-site improvements including the construction of additional lanes, 
increases in storage lane capacities, or modification/installation of signalization, to 
list some examples.  

h. Costs of Mitigation.  

Mitigation improvements which are attributable to the proposed development shall be 
funded at the developer's expense. Any other improvements shown which are 
consistent with the Thoroughfare Plan may be repaid by the City in accordance with its 
cost sharing policies.  

45. Site Plan TIA Content.  

Submittals of TIAs for site plan projects shall include the following:  

a. Study Area.  

A map(s) delineating the TIA study area, including land areas to be considered and all 
existing/planned roadways therein, and the "study network" (those roadways and 
intersections requiring specific analyses).The study area will be determined by 
identifying the geographical area most affected by the proposed development as 
determined by the Administrator after conferring with the applicant. In general the study 
area will cover all intersections through which at least ten (10) percent of the proposed 
development's site traffic passes, and shall extend to and include at least the first traffic 
signal in all directions if within one (1) mile of any portion of the site. Existing roadway 
and intersection capacities shall be shown.  

b. Existing Zoning and Development.  

A description of existing zoning including land area (gross and net) by zoning 
classification, square footage, density of hotel rooms, dwelling units, etc. Also, a 
description of development currently within the proposed site plan, including showing 
how it will be affected by the new development proposal;  

c. Thoroughfare Network.  



 

 

  Page 13 

A description of existing thoroughfares, signals, signal phasing and traffic volumes 
within the study area;  

d. Proposed Development.  

A description of the proposed development including land area (gross and net), square 
footage, density of hotel rooms, dwelling units, etc. Also a description of anticipated 
roadway conditions expected by the date of occupancy of the proposed development 
shall be included.  

e. Proposed Access.  

Identification of the proposed access driveways for the site. This shall include the 
location and number of lanes, proposed traffic controls, and relationship to on-site 
circulation features for each proposed point of access. It must also include any 
proposed modifications to adjacent roadways. Once the TIA and an access plan has 
been approved, the final location and design of all access points shall meet or exceed 
the current access management and roadway design policies of the entity responsible 
for the condition of that portion of adjacent roadway.  

f. Impact Determination.  

A determination of the Level of Service for all roadways and intersections in the study 
area shall be included, as shall an evaluation of pedestrian, bicycle, and motor vehicle 
safety conditions along all the roadway frontage of the site. The analysis shall contain 
the following minimum information:  

1. Proposed Trip Generation.  

A calculation of the total trip generation by use within the study area assuming full 
development and occupancy, including both peak hour and twenty-four-hour 
information show any reductions attributed to passers-by, mixed use, etc. show 
trip generation by use in tabular form with land use trip generation rates and trips 
generated.  

2. Trip Distribution and Assignment.  

A calculation of trips generated by the proposed development as added to the base 
volumes projected for the design year. Peak hour volumes must be calculated. 
Distribution assumptions (and the bases therefore) and assignment calculations 
must be provided.  

3. Level of Service Analysis.  

A depiction shown in tabular form, twenty-four-hour and peak hour 
volume/capacity ratios for links and intersections within the study area. This 
analysis should be done for the following traffic conditions: existing traffic, existing 
traffic plus projected traffic. Capacity analyzes must be shown for all points of 
ingress and egress, median breaks, and turn lanes associated with the proposed 
site.  

4. Neighborhood Traffic Analysis.  

If the TIA calculations show that a proposed site project increases traffic on a minor 
collector or local residential roadway (street) by at least ten (10) percent, a 
neighborhood traffic analysis shall be performed. This analysis will include an 
evaluation of existing and projected traffic on the affected roadways. Where the 
projected traffic exceeds the limits indicated in the BCS Design Guidelines 
mitigation to lower this traffic may be required.  



 

 

  Page 14 

5. Conclusions.  

A summary of findings must be reported. It must show all adjacent roadways and 
intersections noting those that fail to provide Level of Service D or better, and the 
percent increase in total traffic produced by the proposed site project. In addition 
the report must demonstrate that the proposed access design will provide safe and 
adequate access to the project site. It also must identify any safety and operational 
problems (e.g., driveways, sight distances, median openings, and signalization) 
within the study.  

g. Mitigation.  

A description of the mitigation measures proposed for meeting acceptable traffic service 
thresholds shall be shown. Where the development is contributing five (5) percent or 
more of the traffic at locations failing to meet Level of Service D or better the total trips 
should be mitigated by the applicant to low enough levels to achieve the required 
standard (or to pre-development levels, whichever is greater if pre-development level 
is less than Level of Service D). Acceptable measures for mitigating negative traffic 
impacts include any one (1), or a combination of, those listed below.  

1) Modifying the density or intensity of land use, such as a reduction in square footage 
or the percentage of commercial use to result in traffic levels meeting Level of 
Service D or better;  

2) Phasing approval and construction of a project until additional roadway capacity 
becomes available;  

3) Improving the access plan by dealing with features such as overall site 
arrangement, the placement and design features of access points, provision of 
additional access points to roadways not immediately adjacent to the property, 
provision of alternate controls, or adjustments in the site circulation system;  

4) Making off-site improvements including the construction of additional lanes, 
increases in storage lane capacities, or modification of signalization, to list some 
examples.  

h. Costs of Mitigation.  

Mitigation improvements which are attributable to the proposed development shall be 
funded at the developer's expense. Any other improvements shown which are 
consistent with the Thoroughfare Plan may be repaid by the City in accordance with its 
cost sharing policies.  

  

E. Criteria for Approval.  

The City shall consider the following standards in determining whether a proposed rezoning or 
submitted site plan project meets an acceptable Level of Service:  

1. Design Requirement.  

The proposed rezoning or site plan project is consistent with the City's adopted access 
management and design requirements and is consistent with the design requirements of the 
Texas Department of Transportation on roadways maintained by such agency.  

2. Level of Service D.  

The desirable minimum Level of Service for the City of College Station is a Level of Service 
D as that term is described in the Transportation Research Board's Highway Capacity 
Manual.  



 

 

  Page 15 

3. Determination of Adequate Mitigation.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the appropriate Administrator and the 
appropriate reviewing body, where required, shall, based on recommendations by a qualified 
traffic engineer, determine whether adequate mitigation has occurred to meet an acceptable 
level of service utilizing the requirements set forth herein.  

(Ord. No. 2012-3449, Pt. 1(Exh. I), 9-27-2012; Ord. No. 2012-3450, Pt. 1(Exh. E), 9-27-2012; 

Ord. No. 2013-3521, Pt. 1(Exh. L), 9-12-2013)  

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=561090&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=561094&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=611358&datasource=ordbank


Ordinance No. ________  Page 1 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE”, 

ARTICLE 3, “DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES”, SECTION 12-3.4.C, 

“APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS” AND ARTICLE 7, “GENERAL DEVELOPMENT 

STANDARDS”, SECTION 12-7.13, “TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS” OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS REGARDING TRAFFIC 

IMPACT ANALYSIS REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 

DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Article 3 “Development 

Review Procedures,” Section 12-3.4.C “Application Requirements” and Article 7 

“General Development” Section 12-7.13 “Traffic Impact Analysis” of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit 

“A” and Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all 

purposes. 

 

PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 

provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 

punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 

Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be 

permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being 

a penal ordinance, becomes effective not less than ten (10) days after its date of 

passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City 

of College Station. 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 11th day of August, 2016. 

 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Secretary     Mayor 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 2 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Article 3, “Development Review 

Procedures”, Section 12-3.4.C, “Application Requirements” of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of College Station, Texas, is amended to read as follows: 
 

“C. Application Requirements.  

1. Preapplication Conference.  

Prior to the submission of a preliminary plan or a plat application required by this UDO, applicants are 

encouraged to schedule and attend an optional preapplication conference in accordance with and for the 

purposes set forth elsewhere in this UDO for preapplication conferences.  

2. A complete application for review shall be submitted to the Administrator including payment of a fee as 

set forth in this UDO. Upon request, all preliminary plans and all plats shall be submitted in an electronic 

form acceptable to the Administrator and compatible with the City's Geographic Information System (GIS). 

The signatures of all owners of land within the boundary of the preliminary plan or the plat shall be required 

on the application. A representative of an owner may sign the application provided a written letter of agency 

is provided to the City with the application. If the property owner is not an individual but an entity (e.g., 

business or trust), the application must be accompanied by proof of authority for the individual to sign on 

behalf of the entity.  

3. When required to submit the following, the applications shall comply with and/or show the following 

information:  

a. Preliminary Plans.  

When submitting preliminary plans, the following information is required:  

1) The preliminary plan shall conform to the general requirements of this UDO and minimum 

standards of design and improvements as set forth in Chapter 12, Article 8 Subdivision Design 

and Improvements;  

2) Provide the preliminary plan on sheets twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches to a 

scale of one hundred (100) feet per inch or larger. Smaller scales may be allowed at the discretion 

of the Administrator. If more than one (1) sheet, provide an index sheet at a scale of five hundred 

(500) feet per inch or larger;  

3) The words "PRELIMINARY PLAN - NOT FOR RECORD" shall appear on the plan in letters 

one-half (½) inch high;  

4) The date the preliminary plan was submitted and the dates of any revisions shall legibly appear 

on the plan;  

5) The proposed name of the subdivision or development, which shall not have the same spelling 

as or be pronounced similar to the name of any other subdivision located within the county it is 

located;  

6) The name and address of all property owners, developers and subdividers, engineers, and 

surveyors;  

7) The legal description by metes and bounds of the subdivision or development which shall close 

within accepted land survey standards. An accurate location of the subdivision or development 

shall be provided by reference to an established survey or league corner, City of College Station 

horizontal control monument, subdivision corner, or other known point. Primary control points 

or descriptions and ties to such control point, to which, later, all dimensions, angles, bearings, 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 3 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

block numbers, and similar data shall be referred. The preliminary plan shall be located with 

respect to a corner of the survey or tract, or an original corner of the original survey of which it 

is a part;  

8) Subdivision boundary lines shall be indicated by heavy lines and the computed acreage of the 

subdivision or development shown;  

9) The name of contiguous subdivisions and names of owners of contiguous parcels, and an 

indication whether or not contiguous properties are platted;  

10) The following existing features shall be shown: 

(a) The location, dimension, name and description of all recorded streets, alleys, reservations, 

easements, or other public or private rights-of-way within the subdivision or development, 

intersecting or contiguous with its boundaries or forming such boundaries. In the case of 

pipelines carrying flammable gas or fuel, the approximate location, size of line, design 

pressure and product transported through the line shall be shown;  

(b) The location, dimension, description and name of all existing or recorded lots, parks, public 

areas, permanent structures and other sites within or contiguous with the subdivision or 

development;  

(c) The location, dimensions, description, and flow line of existing watercourses and drainage 

structures within the subdivision, development or contiguous thereto;  

(d) The location of the one hundred-year floodplain according to the most recent best available 

data;  

11) Date of preparation, scale in feet, and north arrow; 

12) Topographic information, including contours at two-foot intervals, flow line elevation of 

streams, and wooded areas;  

13) The location, approximate dimensions, description and name of all proposed streets, alleys, 

drainage structures, parks, or other public areas, easements, or other rights-of-way, blocks, lots, 

and other sites within the subdivision or development. Proposed channel cross sections, if any. 

Existing and/or proposed well site locations;  

14) A number or letter to identify each lot and each block. Lots and blocks shown on a preliminary 

plan should be numbered sequentially;  

15) Location of current City limits line, and current zoning district boundaries; 

16) Vicinity map which shows general location of subject property to existing streets in College 

Station and to its City limits. No scale is required but a north arrow is to be included;  

17) Show number of residential lots and average lot size when applicable; 

18) Provide a note to identify a Cluster Subdivision when applicable; 

19) Provide any oversize participation requests that will be sought; 

20) Provide title report for property that is current within ninety (90) days and includes applicable 

information such as ownership, liens, encumbrances, etc;  

21) Written requests for waivers of subdivision standards, if any, shall be submitted in accordance 

with the applicable Sections of this UDO;  

22) Eleven-inch by seventeen-inch copies of the preliminary plan (not necessarily to scale) will be 

requested by the Administrator when the preliminary plan has been reviewed and has the 

potential to be scheduled for a Planning and Zoning Commission meeting for consideration; and  

23) Provide a note on the Preliminary Plan to identify the Residential Parking Option chosen from 

the Single-Family Residential Parking Requirements for Platting when applicable.  



Ordinance No. ________  Page 4 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

24) As applicable, applicants shall submit the information, documents, and materials set forth in the 

Traffic Impact Analysis Section in Chapter 12, Article 7 of this UDO.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 5 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

EXHIBIT “B” 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Article 7 “General Development 

Standards” Section 12-7.13 “Traffic Impact Analysis” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas, is amended to read as follows: 

“Sec. 12-7.13. Traffic Impact Analysis.  

This section establishes requirements and procedures pertaining to traffic impact analysis ("TIAs"). This Article is 

intended to inform the applicant of the City's expectations to ensure safe and adequate access to development 

properties; adequate traffic flow on existing and proposed/planned roadways; and sufficient connectivity of the 

existing and proposed/planned roadway system attributable to their proposal. In addition this Article is intended to 

expedite the City's review of TIA reports, provide standard criteria for evaluating proposals, and identify some 

potential mitigation measures.  

The TIA is intended to form the basis for design of any proposed access/roadway system to ensure coordination of the 

proposed land use with the transportation needs resulting there from. The City of College Station and the developer 

share responsibility to identify and solve transportation issues arising from land development.  

College Station requires that TIAs accompany certain zoning applications, certain site plan applications, and certain 

preliminary plan applications. It is intended that any TIA required for any type of land development proposal will 

complement the overall goal of ensuring that adequate transportation facilities are in place to serve land uses by the 

time those uses are occupied and generating traffic. These purposes are further amplified below.  

A. Purpose.  

1. Zoning TIA.  

The goal of a TIA submitted in conjunction with a zoning request is to determine the effect that uses 

allowed within various proposed zones will have on existing and/or any proposed/planned roadway 

systems, and to ensure there is a balance between future land uses and future transportation systems. 

Zoning applications that are required to have a TIA are evaluated using both current and long-term 

traffic and roadway scenarios.  

The TIA will determine whether acceptable levels of service will be maintained for traffic flow within 

the proposed project and in its study area. Where service levels fall below acceptable standards, 

mitigation solutions will be analyzed for their effectiveness. A TIA for a zoning request should not 

recommend mitigation measures that are inconsistent with any traffic or roadway provisions of the 

Unified Development Ordinance or the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the Thoroughfare Plan. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council shall consider the findings of the TIA in 

approving or disapproving zoning changes to the extent allowed by law.  

2. Preliminary Plan TIA.  

The goal of a TIA submitted in conjunction with a preliminary plan is twofold: to assess the adequacy 

and safety of proposed access to adjacent existing or planned roadways (or designs proposed for such 

access or roadways); and to determine effects the proposed project may have on current and future 

land development and roadway systems in its study area. Generally, the TIA uses current and 

anticipated near-term traffic volumes and roadway configurations for the analysis. The process should 

ensure that the roadway system is, or will be, adequate to accommodate the proposed use and that safe 

and adequate access will be provided for travel between the site and the public roadway system.  

Where the TIA shows levels of service falling below acceptable minimums on roadway systems in its 

study area the TIA will recommend appropriate mitigation measures and demonstrate their 

effectiveness. Example mitigation techniques may include adding/lengthening deceleration/turn 

lanes, improving driveway access, providing connectivity, and modifying traffic control devices. 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 6 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

Combinations of these techniques and other techniques can be considered. A TIA for a preliminary 

plan should not recommend mitigation measures that are inconsistent with any traffic or roadway 

provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance or the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the 

Thoroughfare Plan. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider the findings of the TIA in 

approving or disapproving preliminary plans to the extent allowed by law. 

3. Site Plan TIA.  

The goal of a TIA submitted in conjunction with a site plan is twofold: to assess the adequacy and 

safety of proposed access to adjacent existing or planned roadways (or designs proposed for such 

access or roadways); and to determine effects the site project may have on current and future land 

development and roadway systems in its study area. Generally, the TIA uses current and anticipated 

near-term traffic volumes and roadway configurations for the analysis. The process should ensure that 

the roadway system is, or will be, adequate to accommodate the proposed use and that safe and 

adequate access will be provided for travel between the site and the public roadway system.  

Where the TIA shows levels of service falling below acceptable minimums on roadway systems in its 

study area the TIA will recommend appropriate mitigation measures and demonstrate their 

effectiveness. Example mitigation techniques may include adding/lengthening deceleration/turn 

lanes, improving driveway access, providing connectivity, and modifying traffic control devices. 

Combinations of these techniques and other techniques can be considered. A TIA for a site plan should 

not recommend mitigation measures that are inconsistent with any traffic or roadway provisions of 

the Unified Development Ordinance or the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the Thoroughfare 

Plan. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider the findings of the TIA in approving or 

disapproving site plans to the extent allowed by law.  

B. Definitions.  

1. Trip Generation Rates.  

Trip Generation Rates are used to estimate the amount of vehicular traffic generated by proposed 

rezoning or a proposed site plan. For Zoning and Preliminary Plan TIAs, these rates are shown by 

zoning district in the table below.  Preliminary Plan trip generation rates should be based on the 

underlying zoning district. Site plan TIAs shall use rates set forth in the latest edition of the Trip 

Generation Report published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), unless said Report 

does not adequately address the type or intensity of the proposed land use. In this event the applicant 

or his agent shall submit projected vehicle trips to the Administrator. For land uses adequately 

represented in said Report, alternate trip generation rates shall not be accepted.  

Table 1 

Trip Generation: Residential Land Uses 

Zoning 

Classification  

Maximum 

Units/Acre  

ITE Land 

Use Code  

Trip Rate / 

Unit  

Trip Rate / 

Acre  

R 0.33 210 1.00 0.33 

WE 0.5 210 1.00 0.5 

E 1 210 1.00 1 

WRS 2 210 1.00 2 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 7 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

RS 4 210 1.00 4 

GS 8 210 1.00 8 

D 12 230 0.52 6.24 

T 14 230 0.52 7.28 

MF 30 220 0.62 18.6 

MU Determined by Administrator 

MHP Determined by Administrator 

P-MUD Determined by Administrator 

   

Table 2 

Trip Generation: Non-Residential Land Uses 

Zoning 

Classification  

Maximum 

Units/Acre*  

ITE Land 

Use Code  

Trip Rate / 

KSF  

Trip Rate / 

Acre  

O 16,000 sf 710 1.55 25 

SC 11,000 sf 820 3.75 40 

WC 11,000 sf 820 3.75 40 

GC 13,500 sf 820 3.75 50 

CI 16,000 sf 710 1.55 25 

BP N/A 130 0.85 8.85 

BPI N/A 770 1.43 19 

CU Determined by Administrator 

PDD Determined by Administrator 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 8 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

 

*  Density maximum calculated based on existing (2007) developments in the City of College Station.  

Table 3 

Trip Generation: Retired Land Uses 

Zoning 

Classification  

Maximum 

Units/Acre*  

ITE Land 

Use Code  

Trip Rate / 

KSF  

Trip Rate / 

Acre  

R-4 20.0 220 0.62 12.4 

R-6 30.0 220 0.62 18.6 

C-3 11,000 sf 820 3.75 40 

R&D N/A 760 N/A 16.8 

M-1 N/A 110 N/A 7.5 

M-2 N/A 120 N/A 2.2 

 

2.    Design Year.    

The design year is the point in time upon which assumptions pertaining to land use, population, 

employment, and transportation facilities are based. All TIAs shall use a design year based on the 

expected date of project occupancy, and shall include consideration of nearby development that has 

been approved and will contribute traffic volume to the proposed project's study area.  

3. Peak Periods.  

Peak periods relate to times of day experiencing the greatest hourly traffic flow rates. Two (2) "peaks" 

are to be addressed by a TIA: The morning and afternoon peak hours (or projected peak hours) of 

existing (or planned) roadways serving the proposed land development. Typically roadway peak 

periods are between 7:00 and 9:00 a.m. and between 4:00 and 6:00 p.m.  

4. Base Volumes.  

Base volumes shall be based on current traffic counts adjusted to the expected date of project 

occupancy plus volumes generated by nearby future development (all phases) that has been approved 

by the City. When available, base data will be supplied by the City Traffic Engineer. In all cases where 

traffic counts are needed and are not available, the developer or his agent shall be required to collect 

such data according to guidelines approved by the Administrator.  

5. Level of Service (LOS).  

Level of Service is a measure of the extent of congestion experienced on roadways. It is measured 

through analysis of traffic operating conditions on roadway links and at intersections, using techniques 

presented in the latest edition of the Transportation Research Board's Highway Capacity Manual.  



Ordinance No. ________  Page 9 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

C. Applicability.  

1. Zoning TIA.  

Any zoning request, except for certain "redevelopment" areas as designated on the Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use and Character Map, which is expected to generate at least one hundred fifty 

(150) vehicle trips during any peak hour period requires a TIA. Where the Comprehensive Plan 

designates a property as "Redevelopment" a TIA is required if the zoning request is expected to 

generate at least one hundred fifty (150) vehicle trips during any peak hour period more than those 

generated by the currently approved use(s) on the property. A zoning request involving multiple 

zoning districts is required to have a TIA based on the total traffic generated for all the proposed 

districts. A TIA may be required for a zoning request that generates less than one hundred fifty (150) 

trips in the peak hour, where the peaking characteristics could have a detrimental impact on the 

transportation system as determined by the Administrator.  

A TIA shall be required unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Administrator that 

a TIA is not necessary for the proposed rezoning request. In cases where a TIA is required, the 

rezoning application will be considered incomplete until the TIA is submitted 

2. Preliminary Plan TIA.  

Any proposed development requiring preliminary plan approval, which is expected to generate at least 

one hundred fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period requires a TIA. A TIA may be required for 

preliminary plans that generate less than one hundred fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period where 

the peaking characteristics could have a detrimental impact on the area's vehicular transportation 

system as determined by the Administrator.  

A TIA shall be required unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Administrator that 

a TIA is not necessary for the proposed project. In cases where a TIA is required, the preliminary plan 

application must be accompanied by the TIA 

3. Site Plan TIA.  

Any proposed development requiring site plan approval, excluding developments located in the 

zoning classifications of NG-1, NG-2, or NG-3, which is expected to generate at least one hundred 

fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period requires a TIA. A TIA may be required for site plans that 

generate less than one hundred fifty (150) trips in any peak hour period where the peaking 

characteristics could have a detrimental impact on the area's vehicular transportation system as 

determined by the Administrator.  

A TIA shall be required unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Administrator that 

a TIA is not necessary for the proposed site project. In cases where a TIA is required, the site plan 

application must be accompanied by the TIA.  

D. Methodology.  

1. Professional Engineer to perform TIA.  

All required TIAs shall be performed by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Texas 

qualified to perform such analysis. Qualifications may include, but are not limited to, certification as 

a Professional Traffic Operations Engineer or Professional Transportation Planner by the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers or certification by the Texas Department of Transportation to conduct traffic 

engineering studies.  

2. Pre-Submittal Meeting.  

A pre-submission consultation with the Administrator is required at the time of the Pre-Application 

Conference to discuss whether a TIA is required and, if so, the relevant aspects thereof. The study 

area will be defined to include nearby land developments (existing or approved), the street network 

to be examined (the "study network"), and the minimum extent of analysis. In addition, details of the 

procedures, assumptions, data collection, and analysis methodology(ies) will be determined at this 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 10 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

meeting. Traffic from other nearby developments that have been approved but not yet constructed 

will be accounted for in the TIA as determined by the Administrator. The Administrator may require 

other specific assumptions such as the percent of trucks to match local conditions. The City may 

require analysis of peak fifteen (15) minute intervals for certain types of land uses that generate major 

traffic surges such as, but not limited to, stadiums, movie theaters, arenas, and schools.  

3. Zoning TIA Content.  

a. Study Area.  

A map(s) will delineate the TIA study area, including land areas to be considered and all 

existing/planned streets therein, and the "study network" (those streets and intersections 

requiring specific analysis). The study area shall be determined based on the geographical area 

most affected by the proposed zoning request as determined by the Administrator after 

conferring with the applicant's traffic engineer.  

b. Existing Zoning.  

A description by zoning classification of the existing zoning in the area proposed for rezoning.  

c. Proposed Zoning.  

A description of the proposed zoning including land area by zoning classification.  

d. Roadway Network.  

A description of the existing and proposed/planned roadways of all classifications and traffic 

volumes on the study network within the study area.  

e. Impact Determination.  

An assessment of projected traffic volumes is to be made for all study network roadways, 

comparing those with allowable volume limits on roadways classed as collector and local, and 

providing a description of the volume/capacity (V/C) ratio for all roadways in the study network. 

In addition delay projections for signalized and unsignalized intersections in the study network 

will be determined. Where V/C ratios and intersection delay are the measures of effectiveness 

Level of Service D or better must be maintained. The analysis shall contain the following 

minimum information:  

1. Proposed Trip Generation.  

Show in tabular form trip generation rates (see Table 1, 2, or 3 as applicable) and the total 

trips generated based on proposed zoning.  

2. Existing Trip Generation.  

Show in tabular form trip generation rates (see Table 1, 2, or 3 as applicable) and the total 

trips generated based on existing zoning.  

3. Net Increased Trip Distribution and Assignment.  

Show proposed trip generation minus existing trips and the calculation of new trips 

generated. The net increase in trips generated by the zoning request is to be added to the 

base volumes projected by design year. Twenty-four-hour and peak hour volumes must be 

calculated. Distribution and assignment calculations must be provided.  

4. Level of Service Analysis.  

Show in tabular form peak hour Level of Service for existing and proposed zoning. 

Calculations shall include all thoroughfare links and intersections. Calculate level of 

service and percentage change (when compared to base volumes) for each link and 

intersection.  



Ordinance No. ________  Page 11 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

5. Neighborhood Traffic Analysis.  

If a proposed rezoning is projected to increase the traffic on an existing or 

proposed/planned minor collector or local residential roadway (street) at least ten (10) 

percent, a neighborhood traffic analysis shall be performed. This analysis will include an 

evaluation of existing and projected traffic on the affected roadways. Where the projected 

traffic exceeds the limits indicated in the BCS Design Guidelines, street network layout 

must be adjusted to lower this traffic volume.  

6. Conclusions.  

Summarize points of conflict and congestion, identify all thoroughfare links and 

intersections not achieving Level of Service D or better, and the percentage change 

resulting from the proposed zoning change. The results of examining collector and local 

residential roadways, including the findings of any neighborhood traffic analysis must also 

be summarized.  

f. Mitigation.  

A description of the mitigation measures proposed for achieving acceptable service thresholds 

shall be shown. Analysis of the study network as adjusted by the proposed measures must be 

documented. Traffic produced by the proposed zoning request plus traffic levels projected by 

the time of project occupancy should result in Level of Service D or better. Locations not 

meeting Level of Service D where the proposed zoning contributes five (5) percent or more of 

the peak hour traffic must be mitigated by the applicant. Acceptable methods of mitigating 

negative traffic impacts include any one (1), or a combination of, the measures listed below but 

is not limited to those listed.  

1) Modifying the zoning request so that resulting traffic volumes yield Level of Service D or 

better throughout the study network.  

2) Modify any street network proposed as part of the development project in terms of size, 

layout, connectivity, intersection layouts, or location of termini with thoroughfares, or any 

combination of such changes.  

3) Limit development densities/intensities within one (1) or more zoning classifications or 

land parcels to result in acceptable traffic volumes.  

4) Making minor thoroughfare or intersection improvements, such as adding/extending or 

relocating turn lanes, adding/extending acceleration and/or deceleration lanes, adding non-

traversable medians, relocating median openings, using special directional median 

openings, or using special features to facilitate safe U-turn maneuvers.  

Amendments to the City's Thoroughfare Plan shall not be accepted as a means of mitigating 

negative impacts, unless the proposed amendment(s) can be shown to enhance capacity and 

safety and will be constructed as part of the proposed land development project.  

g. Planning and Zoning Commission Report.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall make a report to the City Council on all TIAs it 

considers in conjunction with requests for rezoning. The Planning and Zoning Commission may 

make a recommendation for approval, modification, or denial of the zoning case based on other 

planning factors in addition to its review of the TIA.  

Where the identified impacts of the proposed zoning cannot be adequately mitigated, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission may recommend to the City Council one (1) or more of the 

following actions:  

1. Denial of the zoning case in total or in part. 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 12 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

2. Other action(s) deemed appropriate by a study made, or endorsed by, a qualified traffic 

engineer to mitigate negative traffic impacts.  

4. Preliminary Plan TIA Content.  

Submittals of TIAs for preliminary plan projects shall include the following:  

a. Study Area.  

A map(s) delineating the TIA study area, including land areas to be considered and all 

existing/planned roadways therein, and the "study network" (those roadways and intersections 

requiring specific analysis).The study area will be determined by identifying the geographical 

area most affected by the proposed development as determined by the Administrator after 

conferring with the applicant. In general the study area will cover all intersections through which 

at least ten (10) percent of the proposed development's site traffic passes, and shall extend to and 

include at least the first traffic signal in all directions if within one (1) mile of any portion of the 

site. Existing roadway and intersection capacities shall be shown.  

b. Existing Zoning.  

A description of existing zoning in the area included in the preliminary plan.   

c. Thoroughfare Network.  

A description of existing thoroughfares, signals, signal phasing and traffic volumes within the 

study area;  

d. Proposed Development.  

A description of the proposed development including land area (gross and net), square footage, 

density, dwelling units, etc. Also a description of anticipated roadway conditions expected by 

the date of completion of the proposed development shall be included.  

e. Proposed Roadway Network.  

Identification of the proposed roadway network for the preliminary plan. This shall include the 

location of access points, location and number of lanes of proposed roadways or public ways, 

and proposed traffic controls. It must also include any proposed modifications to adjacent 

roadways.  

f. Impact Determination.  

A determination of the Level of Service for all roadways and intersections in the study area shall 

be included, as shall an evaluation of pedestrian, bicycle, and motor vehicle safety conditions 

within the preliminary plan. The analysis shall contain the following minimum information:  

1. Proposed Trip Generation.  

A calculation of the total trip generation by use within the study area assuming full 

development and occupancy, including both peak hour and twenty-four-hour information 

show any reductions attributed to passers-by, mixed use, etc. show trip generation by use 

in tabular form with land use trip generation rates and trips generated.  

2. Trip Distribution and Assignment.  

A calculation of trips generated by the proposed development as added to the base volumes 

projected for the design year. Peak hour volumes must be calculated. Distribution 

assumptions (and the bases therefore) and assignment calculations must be provided.  

3. Level of Service Analysis.  



Ordinance No. ________  Page 13 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

A depiction shown in tabular form, twenty-four-hour and peak hour volume/capacity ratios 

for links and intersections within the study area. This analysis should be done for the 

following traffic conditions: existing traffic, existing traffic plus projected traffic.  

4. Neighborhood Traffic Analysis.  

If the TIA calculations show that a proposed preliminary plan increases traffic on a minor 

collector or local residential roadway (street) by at least ten (10) percent, a neighborhood 

traffic analysis shall be performed. This analysis will include an evaluation of existing and 

projected traffic on the affected roadways. Where the projected traffic exceeds the limits 

indicated in the BCS Design Guidelines mitigation to lower this traffic may be required.  

5. Conclusions.  

A summary of findings must be reported. It must show all adjacent roadways and 

intersections noting those that fail to provide Level of Service D or better, and the percent 

increase in total traffic produced by the proposed project. In addition the report must 

demonstrate that the proposed roadway network will provide safe and adequate access to 

the development. It also must identify any safety and operational problems (e.g., 

driveways, sight distances, median openings, and signalization) within the study area.  

g. Mitigation.  

A description of the mitigation measures proposed for meeting acceptable traffic service 

thresholds shall be shown. Where the development is contributing five (5) percent or more of 

the traffic at locations failing to meet Level of Service D or better the total trips should be 

mitigated by the applicant to low enough levels to achieve the required standard (or to pre-

development levels, if pre-development level is less than Level of Service D). Acceptable 

measures for mitigating negative traffic impacts include any one (1), or a combination of, those 

listed below.  

1) Modifying the density or intensity of land use, such as a reduction in square footage or the 

percentage of commercial use to result in traffic levels meeting Level of Service D or 

better;  

2) Phasing approval and construction of a project until additional roadway capacity becomes 

available;  

3) Modifying the proposed street network in terms of size, layout, connectivity, intersection 

layouts, or location of termini with thoroughfares or any combination of such changes;  

4) Making off-site improvements including the construction of additional lanes, increases in 

storage lane capacities, or modification/installation of signalization, to list some examples.  

h. Costs of Mitigation.  

Mitigation improvements which are attributable to the proposed development shall be funded at 

the developer's expense. Any other improvements shown which are consistent with the 

Thoroughfare Plan may be repaid by the City in accordance with its cost sharing policies.  

5. Site Plan TIA Content.  

Submittals of TIAs for site plan projects shall include the following:  

a. Study Area.  

A map(s) delineating the TIA study area, including land areas to be considered and all 

existing/planned roadways therein, and the "study network" (those roadways and intersections 

requiring specific analysis).The study area will be determined by identifying the geographical 

area most affected by the proposed development as determined by the Administrator after 

conferring with the applicant. In general the study area will cover all intersections through which 



Ordinance No. ________  Page 14 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

at least ten (10) percent of the proposed development's site traffic passes, and shall extend to and 

include at least the first traffic signal in all directions if within one (1) mile of any portion of the 

site. Existing roadway and intersection capacities shall be shown.  

b. Existing Zoning and Development.  

A description of existing zoning including land area (gross and net) by zoning classification, 

square footage, density of hotel rooms, dwelling units, etc. Also, a description of development 

currently within the proposed site plan, including showing how it will be affected by the new 

development proposal;  

c. Thoroughfare Network.  

A description of existing thoroughfares, signals, signal phasing and traffic volumes within the 

study area;  

d. Proposed Development.  

A description of the proposed development including land area (gross and net), square footage, 

density of hotel rooms, dwelling units, etc. Also a description of anticipated roadway conditions 

expected by the date of occupancy of the proposed development shall be included.  

e. Proposed Access.  

Identification of the proposed access driveways for the site. This shall include the location and 

number of lanes, proposed traffic controls, and relationship to on-site circulation features for 

each proposed point of access. It must also include any proposed modifications to adjacent 

roadways. Once the TIA and an access plan has been approved, the final location and design of 

all access points shall meet or exceed the current access management and roadway design 

policies of the entity responsible for the condition of that portion of adjacent roadway.  

f. Impact Determination.  

A determination of the Level of Service for all roadways and intersections in the study area shall 

be included, as shall an evaluation of pedestrian, bicycle, and motor vehicle safety conditions 

along all the roadway frontage of the site. The analysis shall contain the following minimum 

information:  

1. Proposed Trip Generation.  

A calculation of the total trip generation by use within the study area assuming full 

development and occupancy, including both peak hour and twenty-four-hour information 

show any reductions attributed to passers-by, mixed use, etc. show trip generation by use 

in tabular form with land use trip generation rates and trips generated.  

2. Trip Distribution and Assignment.  

A calculation of trips generated by the proposed development as added to the base volumes 

projected for the design year. Peak hour volumes must be calculated. Distribution 

assumptions (and the bases therefore) and assignment calculations must be provided.  

3. Level of Service Analysis.  

A depiction shown in tabular form, twenty-four-hour and peak hour volume/capacity ratios 

for links and intersections within the study area. This analysis should be done for the 

following traffic conditions: existing traffic, existing traffic plus projected traffic. Capacity 

analyzes must be shown for all points of ingress and egress, median breaks, and turn lanes 

associated with the proposed site.  

4. Neighborhood Traffic Analysis.  



Ordinance No. ________  Page 15 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

If the TIA calculations show that a proposed site project increases traffic on a minor 

collector or local residential roadway (street) by at least ten (10) percent, a neighborhood 

traffic analysis shall be performed. This analysis will include an evaluation of existing and 

projected traffic on the affected roadways. Where the projected traffic exceeds the limits 

indicated in the BCS Design Guidelines mitigation to lower this traffic may be required.  

5. Conclusions.  

A summary of findings must be reported. It must show all adjacent roadways and 

intersections noting those that fail to provide Level of Service D or better, and the percent 

increase in total traffic produced by the proposed site project. In addition the report must 

demonstrate that the proposed access design will provide safe and adequate access to the 

project site. It also must identify any safety and operational problems (e.g., driveways, sight 

distances, median openings, and signalization) within the study.  

g. Mitigation.  

A description of the mitigation measures proposed for meeting acceptable traffic service 

thresholds shall be shown. Where the development is contributing five (5) percent or more of 

the traffic at locations failing to meet Level of Service D or better the total trips should be 

mitigated by the applicant to low enough levels to achieve the required standard (or to pre-

development levels, if pre-development level is less than Level of Service D). Acceptable 

measures for mitigating negative traffic impacts include any one (1), or a combination of, those 

listed below.  

1) Modifying the density or intensity of land use, such as a reduction in square footage or the 

percentage of commercial use to result in traffic levels meeting Level of Service D or 

better;  

2) Phasing approval and construction of a project until additional roadway capacity becomes 

available;  

3) Improving the access plan by dealing with features such as overall site arrangement, the 

placement and design features of access points, provision of additional access points to 

roadways not immediately adjacent to the property, provision of alternate controls, or 

adjustments in the site circulation system;  

4) Making off-site improvements including the construction of additional lanes, increases in 

storage lane capacities, or modification of signalization, to list some examples.  

h. Costs of Mitigation.  

Mitigation improvements which are attributable to the proposed development shall be funded at 

the developer's expense. Any other improvements shown which are consistent with the 

Thoroughfare Plan may be repaid by the City in accordance with its cost sharing policies.  

E. Criteria for Approval.  

The City shall consider the following standards in determining whether a proposed rezoning or submitted 

site plan project meets an acceptable Level of Service:  

1. Design Requirement.  

The proposed rezoning or site plan project is consistent with the City's adopted access management 

and design requirements and is consistent with the design requirements of the Texas Department of 

Transportation on roadways maintained by such agency.  

2. Level of Service D.  

The desirable minimum Level of Service for the City of College Station is a Level of Service D as 

that term is described in the Transportation Research Board's Highway Capacity Manual.  



Ordinance No. ________  Page 16 of 16 
 

0e370361-9bf0-4f65-a1e7-8d9ea50e6bfd.docx 

3. Determination of Adequate Mitigation.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the appropriate Administrator and the appropriate 

reviewing body, where required, shall, based on recommendations by a qualified traffic engineer, 

determine whether adequate mitigation has occurred to meet an acceptable level of service utilizing 

the requirements set forth herein.  



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0467 Name: Proposed Ordinance Amendment

Status:Type: Ordinance Agenda Ready

File created: In control:7/25/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance amending Chapter 10 "Traffic Code" of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas by addition Section 10-14 "Use of
Wireless Communication Devices While Operating a Motor Vehicle or Bicycle" and providing a
severability clause; declaring a penalty; and providing an effective date.

Sponsors: Scott McCollum

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Section 10-14 WCD Ord 7-28-16

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance amending Chapter 10 "Traffic Code"
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas by addition Section 10-14 "Use of
Wireless Communication Devices While Operating a Motor Vehicle or Bicycle" and providing a
severability clause; declaring a penalty; and providing an effective date.

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Good Governance

· Core Services and Infrastructure

· Neighborhood Integrity

· Improving Mobility

· Sustainable City

Recommendation(s): Based on feedback from our previous workshop discussion and City Council
direction, staff recommends approval.

Summary: Driver inattention while using wireless communication devices is a growing public safety
concern.  While the State Legislature has considered a State law regarding use of these devices
while driving in past sessions, each session the bill has either been vetoed by the Governor or
otherwise failed.  The purpose of the proposed ordinance modification is to provide a mechanism of
enforcement and a deterrence regarding use of wireless communication devices and driving within
our community.

Budget & Financial Summary: Estimated costs to implement signage for proposed ordinance is
$15,000.

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://collegestation.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4604651&GUID=16D8EDBA-3EFA-4F28-BB39-A1B48B7DDE1C


File #: 16-0467, Version: 1

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance Amendment

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE” OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY ADDING 

SECTION 10-14 “USE OF WIRELESS COMMUNICATION DEVICES WHILE 

OPERATING A MOTOR VEHICLE OR BICYCLE”, PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 

CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 

TEXAS: 

 

PART 1: That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, be amended by adding Section 10-14 “Use of 

Wireless Communication Devices While Operating a Motor Vehicle or Bicycle”, 

as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all 

purposes. 

 

PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 

provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 

punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 

Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00). Each day such violation shall continue or be 

permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being 

a penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the 

City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College 

Station. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 11th day of August, 2016. 

 

      APPROVED: 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

City Secretary 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_______________________________ 

City Attorney  



Ordinance No.__________   Page 2 of 3 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, is hereby amended by adding Section 10-14 “Use of Wireless 

Communication Devices While Operating a Motor Vehicle or Bicycle”, and is to read as follows: 

 

Section 10-14  

 

Use of Wireless Communication Devices While Operating a Motor Vehicle or Bicycle  

 

A. Definitions. 

 

1. Authorized Emergency Personnel means a person who is a law enforcement 

officer, firefighter, member of a governmental emergency medical services, 

communications or public utility function, or member of a governmental 

emergency management function.  

 

2. Hands-free Device means speakerphone capability or a telephone attachment or 

other piece of equipment, regardless of whether permanently installed in the motor 

vehicle allowing use of the Wireless Communication Device without use of either 

of the operator's hands. 

 

3. Use means employing, accessing or operating the Wireless Communication Device 

for any reason. 

 

4. Wireless Communication Device has the meaning assigned in Texas 

Transportation Code § 545.425, as amended.  

 

B. Violation. An operator of a motor vehicle or a bicycle may not use a Wireless 

Communication Device while operating a motor vehicle or bicycle on a public roadway or 

highway.   

 

C.  Affirmative Defenses. It is an affirmative defense to prosecution to an offense under this 

section if: 

 

1. Complete Stop. The motor vehicle or bicycle is at a complete stop.  

 

2. Hands-free Device. The Wireless Communication Device is used in Hands-free 

Device mode of operation to engage in telephone communication or to listen to 

audio transmissions. 

 

3. Navigation. The Wireless Communication Device is used as global positioning or 

navigation device or for its global positioning or navigation operating software and 

the Wireless Communication Device is affixed to the motor vehicle or bicycle.  

 



Ordinance No.__________   Page 3 of 3 

 

4.  Emergency Services. The Wireless Communication Device is used for obtaining 

emergency assistance to report a crime, traffic accident, medical emergency, 

serious traffic hazard or in prevention of a crime. 

 

D. Presumption. Evidence that a police officer observed a person holding a Wireless 

Communication Device while operating a motor vehicle or bicycle in motion creates a rebuttable 

presumption that the person used a Wireless Communication Device in violation of this section. 

 

E.  Conflicts. To the extent this section conflicts with any provision of the Texas 

Transportation Code regarding the use of wireless communication devices or hand-held mobile 

telephones, this section does not apply. 

 

F.  Non-Applicability. This section does not apply to: 

 

a.  A person licensed by the Federal Communication Commission while operating a 

radio frequency device other than a Wireless Communication Device. 

 

b. Authorized Emergency Personnel while acting in official capacity. 



City Hall
1101 Texas Ave

College Station, TX 77840
College Station, TX

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-0481 Name: Appointments

Status:Type: Appointment Agenda Ready

File created: In control:7/29/2016 City Council Regular

On agenda: Final action:8/11/2016

Title: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding appointments to the following boards and
commissions:
•                     Design Review Board
•                     Historic Preservation Committee
•                     Parks and Recreation Board

Sponsors: Sherry Mashburn

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding appointments to the following boards and
commissions:

• Design Review Board
• Historic Preservation Committee
• Parks and Recreation Board

Relationship to Strategic Goals:

· Good Governance

Recommendation(s):  None

Summary: These boards are having difficulty maintaining a quorum, due either to non-attendance or
resignation.  Requests for applications have been advertised on radio, the City's website, HOA's,
Citizens University, etc.

Budget & Financial Summary: None

Attachments: None

College Station, TX Printed on 8/5/2016Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0480
	16-0480 - WKSHP072816 DRAFT Minutes
	16-0480 - RM072816 DRAFT Minutes
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0400
	16-0400 - Contract and Grant for HOME Programs- Elder-Aid Inc.
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0413
	16-0413 - Project Location Map 8.5x11 - FM2818 Capacity Improvements
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0419
	16-0419 - Lick Creek Location Map
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0420
	16-0420 - ITB 16-075 tabulation - 16-075 Tabulation
	Sheet1

	16-0420 - Project location map
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0421
	16-0421 - Project Map
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0435
	16-0435 - Bid Tab for 16-087
	Sheet1

	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0436
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0445
	16-0445 - 15B RES hearing w-ww IF
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0449
	16-0449 - Bid 14-072 Signed Copy and Print - AlphaGraphics
	16-0449 - Bid 14-072 Signed Copy and Print - Copy Corner
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0450
	16-0450 - Bid 15-062 Signed Electric Distribution Poles
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0455
	16-0455 - Bid Tab 16-089
	Sheet1

	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0460
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0472
	16-0472 - ITB 16-085 tabulation - ITB 16-085 Tabulation
	Tab

	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0475
	16-0475 - CVB 2016 Amend #1-Shannon signed
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0477
	16-0477 - Background Information
	16-0477 - Aerial
	16-0477 - Amendment Map
	16-0477 - 0 comp plan 8607 RPR 3 FINAL
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0478
	16-0478 - Vicinity Map
	16-0478 - Location Map
	16-0478 - Ordinance
	16-0478 - Exhibit A
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0479
	16-0479 - Redlined Applicable UDO Sections
	16-0479 - Ordinance 12-7.13 4
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0467
	16-0467 - Section 10-14 WCD Ord 7-28-16
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 16-0481




